
City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 22, 2021 

Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, June 22, 2021 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room at the Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 
 

 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Daniel Bucher. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Fire Chief Jon 
Fontenot. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Councilmember Dan Kirkley. 
 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Public Comments. 

 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address, for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 

 
Consent Agenda 
 
Items 3-6 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
3. Consider minutes of June 8, 2021, City Council Meeting. 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 22, 2021 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

4. Consider a resolution of support for the 2021 Federal Defense Community 
Infrastructure Program (DCIP) Grant proposed by the Heart of Texas Defense 
Alliance for the Fort Hood SH9 Project. 

 
5. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the submittal of a grant application to the 

U.S. Department of Transportation for a Rebuilding American Infrastructure with 
Sustainability and Equity (RAISE) grant for the S. Connell Street Capacity 
Improvement Project. 

 
6. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute Change Order No. 1 for the 2021 

Street Overlay Project to add additional streets and scope of work to the project. 
 
Planning and Zoning 
 
7. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Single Family-1 (SF-1) to 

Planned Development - Single Family-1, to allow for new homes to be built with a 
flat or shallow pitch roof, on approximately 6.011 acres located on East 25th 
Avenue, described as Guess Dulany Subdivision, Block 1, Lots 1-11. 
 

8. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Commercial Highway to 
Planned Development - Commercial Highway and Single Family-2 District, to allow 
for commercial uses and single-family homes, for properties located at the northwest 
corner of South Wall Street and East Avenue R described as the Cameron 
Subdivision, Block 1, Lots 1-8 and Block 2, Lots 1-4.   

 
9. Receive a report and discuss the 2016 Non-Annexation Development Agreements. 
 
FY2022 Budget 
 
10. Conduct a work session on FY2022 budget considerations including, but not limited 

to, the following funds: 
 
A. Water and Sewer Fund 
B. Drainage Fund 
C. Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) Fund 
D. Belton Economic Development Corporation (BEDC) Fund 

 
Executive Session 
 
11. Executive Session pursuant to the provision of the Open Meetings Law, Chapter 

551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance with the authority 
contained in Section 551.072, Deliberation Regarding Real Property. 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 22, 2021 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, June 22, 2021 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room at the Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 
 

 
OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Daniel Bucher. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Fire Chief Jon 
Fontenot. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Councilmember Dan Kirkley. 
 
 
1. Call to order. 
 
2. Public Comments. 

 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address, for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 

 
Consent Agenda 
 
Items 3-6 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 22, 2021 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

3. Consider minutes of June 8, 2021, City Council Meeting. 
 

A copy of the minutes is attached. Recommend approval. 
 
4. Consider a resolution of support for the 2021 Federal Defense Community 

Infrastructure Program (DCIP) Grant proposed by the Heart of Texas Defense 
Alliance for the Fort Hood SH9 Project. 

 
See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi. Recommend adoption of the 
resolution. 

 
5. Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the submittal of a grant application 

to the U.S. Department of Transportation for a Rebuilding American 
Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity (RAISE) grant for the S. Connell 
Street Capacity Improvement Project. 

 
See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi and Grants and Special Projects 
Coordinator Jo-Ell Guzman. Recommend adoption of the resolution. 

 
6. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute Change Order No. 1 for the 

2021 Street Overlay Project to add additional streets and scope of work to the 
project. 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Public Works Angellia Points. Recommend 
approval of Change Order No. 1 as presented. 

 
Planning and Zoning 
 
7. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Single Family-1 (SF-

1) to Planned Development - Single Family-1, to allow for new homes to be 
built with a flat or shallow pitch roof, on approximately 6.011 acres located on 
East 25th Avenue, described as Guess Dulany Subdivision, Block 1, Lots 1-11. 
 
See Staff Report from Planner Tina Moore. At its meeting on June 15, 2021, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval of this 
zoning change, and Staff concurs. 
 

8. Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Commercial 
Highway to Planned Development - Commercial Highway and Single Family-2 
District, to allow for commercial uses and single-family homes, for properties 
located at the northwest corner of South Wall Street and East Avenue R 
described as the Cameron Subdivision, Block 1, Lots 1-8 and Block 2, Lots 1-
4.   

 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
June 22, 2021 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

See Staff Report from Planner Tina Moore. At its meeting on June 15, 2021, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously recommended approval of this City 
initiated zoning change, and Staff concurs. 

 
9. Receive a report and discuss the 2016 Non-Annexation Development 

Agreements. 
 

See Staff Report from Director of Planning Bob van Til. No final action is required of 
the Council at this time, although direction is requested. 
 

FY2022 Budget 
 
10. Conduct a work session on FY2022 budget considerations including, but not 

limited to, the following funds: 
 
A. Water and Sewer Fund 
B. Drainage Fund 
C. Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) Fund 
D. Belton Economic Development Corporation (BEDC) Fund 

 
See Staff Report from Director of Finance Mike Rodgers. No action is required of the 
Council at this time. 
 

Executive Session 
 
11. Executive Session pursuant to the provision of the Open Meetings Law, Chapter 

551, Govt. Code, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, in accordance with the authority 
contained in Section 551.072, Deliberation Regarding Real Property. 

 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 8, 2021 – 5:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in regular session in the Wright Room of the Harris Community 
Center. Members present included Mayor Wayne Carpenter, Mayor Pro Tem David K. Leigh, 
and Councilmembers Craig Pearson, Dan Kirkley, Guy O’Banion, John R. Holmes, Sr. and 
Daniel Bucher. Staff present included Sam Listi, Gene Ellis, John Messer, Amy Casey, Jon 
Fontenot, Chris Brown, Mike Rodgers, Angellia Points, Kim Kroll, Charlotte Walker, Bob van 
Til, Matt Bates, Judy Garrett, Tina Moore, Jo-Ell Guzman and Cynthia Hernandez.  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Councilmember Guy O’Banion, and the 
pledge to the Texas Flag was led by City Manager Sam Listi. The Invocation was given by 
Mayor Wayne Carpenter. 
 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Carpenter called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. 
 
2. Public Comments. (Audio 1:24)  
 

There were none. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Items 3-7 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be 
enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be removed 
from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any Councilmember, and it will be 
considered separately. (Audio 1:28) 
 
3. Consider minutes of previous meetings: 

 
A. May 25, 2021, City Council Meeting. 
B. May 26, 2021, City Council Strategic Plan Workshop Meeting. 

 
4. Consider an appointment to the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute the Temple-Belton Wastewater 

Treatment Plant – Odor Control Settlement Agreement. 
 
6. Consider a Façade Improvement Grant Application to renovate the property at 110 

N. Main Street. 
 
7. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute the amended and restated 

Communications Agreement between Bell County and the Cities of Belton, Harker 
Heights, Killeen and Temple. 

 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Holmes, and a second by Councilmember Pearson, the 
Consent Agenda was unanimously approved upon a vote of 7-0. 

 



Belton City Council Meeting 
June 8, 2021 – Page 2  
 

  

Miscellaneous 
 
8. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an amended professional 

services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick and Associates for design modifications 
to Phase II improvements to the Temple-Belton Wastewater Treatment Plant. (Audio 
3:02) 

 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Holmes, and a second by Mayor Pro Tem Leigh, Item 
8 was unanimously approved upon a vote of 7-0. 
 

FY2022 Budget 
 
9. Conduct a work session on FY2022 budget considerations including, but not 

limited to, the following funds: (Audio 20:06) 
 
A. General Fund 
B. Debt Service Fund 
C. Information Technology Fund 
D. Building Maintenance Fund 
E. Hotel/Motel Fund 
 
Director of Finance Mike Rodgers presented Exhibit “A.” No action was required of the 
Council at this time. 
 

There being no further business, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 6:49 p.m. 
 
 
 

_____________________________  
Wayne Carpenter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



1

Overview Comments by:

Sam A. Listi

City Manager

FY22 Budget Workshop
June 8, 2021

2

Overview Comments

• Today is the first session on the FY ‘22 Annual Operating
Budget, following meetings with Department Heads and
Strategic Plan session in May.

• Budget uncertainties from COVID-19 not as dramatic in
FY ‘22, given positive growth signs; possible lingering
effects.

• Revenue sources for FY ‘22 appear to be stabilizing,
aiding budget development.

• Personnel services cost are increasing due to salary, health
insurance, and retirement expenses.

1

2

Exhibit "A"



2

3

Overview Comments
• Revenue projections for property taxes reflect a 7.2%

increase in value based on a stable $0.63 tax rate
(preliminary).

• Projections for sales tax reflect a 6% increase over the
year-end estimate for FY ‘21.

• Favorable Council input this Spring on FD and PD
personnel changes, 15% increased health insurance cost,
civil service and merit adjustments, and TMRS for a full
year, add $977,000 to GF personnel costs.

4

Overview Comments

• Other key objectives included in the proposed budget:
– Resiliency measures from the winter storm after-action report

– Additional part-time support in Parks

– An external comprehensive personnel study

– Street maintenance funding at a base amount of $500,000

– Continued funding of capital equipment replacement fund

3

4



3

5

Overview Comments

• With Department Goals presented at the May 26 Strategic
Plan Session, Department Heads will be available for
Q&A on their budgets.

• An analysis of Belton’s Fund Balance Policy is in
development for presentation soon.

• American Rescue Plan Funding (ARP) opportunities will
be presented when final guidance emerges from the State.

Presented by:

Michael Rodgers, CPA

Director of Finance

FY22 Budget Workshop
June 8, 2021

5

6



4

7

Funds To Be Discussed

• General Fund

• Debt Service Fund

• Information Technology Fund

• Building Maintenance Fund

• Hotel / Motel Fund

8

General Fund
Forecast for FY 2021

FY 2021 FY 2021
Amended Year-End
Budget Estimate

Revenue 15,879,702$ 16,093,353$ 
Expenditures* (16,759,269)  (16,259,126)  
Incr/(Decr) to Reserve (879,567)$     (165,773)$     

*The originally adopted expenditure budget for FY 2021 was $15,381,769

7

8



5

9

Forecast for FY 2021
• Total revenue is over budget due to

– Permitting receipts
– Sales tax
– Property tax payments

• Expenditures are under budget due to
– Fewer public safety retirements
– Contingencies / pay plan changes

10

General Fund
FY22 Statement of Fund Balance

 Projected Spendable Balance, Sept 30, 2021 6,962,824$   

Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:
FY22 Revenue 16,886,840   
FY22 Expenditures (16,750,480)  

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance 136,360        

Spendable Fund Balance, Sept 30, 2022 7,099,184$   

9

10



6

Status of General Fund Reserves
FY15 to FY22

11

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

Unassigned Reserve Balance Minimum Reserve Requirement

12

Budget to Budget Comparison
by Revenue Category 

General Fund

Revenue Category

FY21

Budget

FY21

Estimate

FY22

Budget

Budget

Inc / (Dec)

Property Tax $ 6,313,269 $ 6,404,957 $ 6,822,850 $  509,581

Sales Tax 4,511,000 4,563,811 4,837,640 326,640

Franchise & Other Tax 1,276,149 1,223,624 1,215,210 (60,939)

Permit Fees 246,628 350,346 294,480 47,852

Court Fines & Fees 302,550 278,104 306,730 4,180

Charges for Service 2,447,738 2,557,156 2,713,350 265,612

Miscellaneous 180,165 127,024 138,450 (41,715)

Transfers 602,203 588,331 558,130 (44,073)

Total Revenue $15,879,702 $16,093,353 $16,886,840 $1,007,138   

11

12



7

13

FY22 General Fund Revenue
Property tax           $ 6,822,850

Sales tax  4,837,640

Service charges         2,713,350

Franchise fees 1,215,210

Transfers 558,130                   

Court fines & fees        306,730

Permits 294,480

Miscellaneous 138,450

Total                      $16,886,840

Property tax, 
44%

Sales tax, 
22%

Service 
charges, 

13%

Franchise 
fees, 9%

Property tax Sales tax Service charges

Franchise fees Miscellaneous Transfers

Court fines Permits

14

FY22 Property Tax Revenue

• Preliminary adjusted taxable value increases by 
7.2% to $1,529,948,477

• Preliminary proposed property tax rate is 63 cents

• Revenue may increase by $509,000 with about 
$200,000 coming from new properties that were 
added to the tax roll

13

14



8

Property Tax History
FY15 to FY22

FY O&M TIRZ Debt

2015 $4,396,492 $   582,394 $   947,536

2016 $4,613,688 $   670,769 $1,090,922

2017 $4,816,716 $   728,568 $1,074,343

2018 $5,212,685 $   806,821 $   990,961

2019 $5,568,951 $   901,067 $   934,987

2020 $6,214,755 $1,155,204 $   964,758

2021Projected $6,404,957 $1,421,888 $1,217,744

2022Budget $6,822,850 $1,757,200 $1,213,020

15

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

$9,000,000

$10,000,000

O&M TIRZ Debt

Sales Tax History
FY15 to FY22

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

$4,000,000

$4,500,000

$5,000,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

FY Revenue

2015 $3,205,410

2016 $3,155,659

2017 $3,276,982

2018 $3,510,104

2019 $3,573,712

2020 $4,085,122

2021Projected $4,563,811

2022Budget $4,837,640

16

15

16



9

17

FY22 Other
General Fund Revenue

• Refuse collection and contract fees increase 
by $215,000 as the number of customers 
continues to grow

• Franchise fee revenue is reduced to reflect 
recent averages and the loss of certain 
telecom fees

• Interest income falls by $35,000 as yields 
remain low

FY22 General Fund
Expenditures by Function

General 
Govt, 
11%

Public 
Safety, 49%Streets, 

10%

Culture & 
Rec, 12%

Solid 
Waste, 
11%

General Govt Public Safety Streets

Planning Culture & Rec Solid Waste

Maintenance

Function FY22 Budget

General government $     1,878,930

Public safety $     8,251,550

Streets $     1,629,610

Planning $        605,640

Culture & recreation $     2,062,740

Solid waste $     1,799,210

Maintenance services $        522,800

Total $   16,750,480

18

17

18



10

19

Budget to Budget Comparison
by General Fund Division

General Fund

Division

FY21

Amended

Budget

FY21

Estimate

FY22

Budget

Budget

Inc / (Dec)

City Council $     82,250   $   75,738 $   235,950 $153,700   

City Management 505,472 509,064       629,570 124,098       

Public Information 55,292 57,839 60,450 5,158

Retail Development 42,457 39,057 44,570 2,113

Finance 399,944 387,313 378,210 (21,734)

Human Resources 230,665 210,605 291,530 60,865          

Municipal Court 237,874 232,902 238,650 776

PD Administration 360,050 339,824 371,830 11,780

PD Patrol 3,118,742 3,005,767 3,315,850 197,108

PD Support Services/CID 1,179,994 1,090,525 1,383,010 203,016

20

Budget to Budget Comparison
by General Fund Division

General Fund

Division

FY21

Amended

Budget

FY21

Estimate

FY22

Budget

Budget

Inc / (Dec)

PD Animal Control $  102,747     $  97,827 $   103,230 $         483   

PD Code Enforcement 78,290 78,268       80,790 2,500       

FD Suppression 2,920,255 2,872,655 2,996,840 76,585

Streets 2,085,626 2,410,020 1,490,530 (595,096)

Rec Maintenance 1,103,306 1,104,100 1,129,210 25,904

Rec Community Center 219,585 211,486 216,540 (3,045)          

Rec Recreation 196,696 182,313 217,950 21,254

Planning 193,390 140,365 239,890 46,500

Inspections 324,058 304,865 337,980 13,922

GIS 27,511 20,164 27,770 259

19

20



11

21

Budget to Budget Comparison
by General Fund Division

General Fund

Division

FY21

Amended

Budget

FY21

Estimate

FY22

Budget

Budget

Inc / (Dec)

Library $    495,836     $    481,758 $    499,040 $       3,204   

Other Costs 575,651 197,901 0 (575,651)       

Solid Waste Collection 1,433,262 1,501,889 1,657,710 224,448

Solid Waste Brush 119,485 107,630 141,500 22,015

Fleet Maintenance 497,198 468,337 522,800 25,602

Engineering 173,633 130,914 139,080 (34,553)          

Total Expenditures $16,759,269 $16,259,126 $16,750,480 $     (8,789)

The originally adopted budget for FY 2021 was $15,381,769

22

FY22 General Fund
Expenditures by Category

Personnel             $ 9,931,740

Supplies                     535,860

Maintenance              865,100

Services         4,444,040

Other Costs 240,650

Capital Outlay 0

Transfers 733,090

Total                    $16,750,480

Personnel, 
59%

Services, 
27%

Personnel Supplies Maintenance

Services Other Costs Capital Outlay

Transfers

21

22



12

23

Budget to Budget Comparison
by Expenditure Category

General Fund 
Expenditure 

Category

FY21

Amended

Budget

FY21

Estimate

FY22

Budget

Budget

Inc / (Dec)

Personnel $ 9,279,802 $ 9,009,674 $ 9,931,740 $    651,938

Supplies 583,969 518,659 535,860 (48,109)

Maintenance 1,088,917 1,054,015 865,100 (223,817)

Services 4,065,766 3,952,418 4,444,040 378,274

Other Costs 575,651 197,901 240,650 (335,001)

Capital Outlay 80,495 85,790 0 (80,495)

Transfers 1,084,669 1,440,669 733,090 (351,579)

Totals $ 16,759,269 $ 16,259,126 $ 16,750,480 $      (8,789)

The originally adopted budget for FY 2021 was $15,381,769

24

Significant Changes

• Personnel costs increase by $977,000 with the 
following
– PD and FD rank structure changes $281,000

– Civil service step increases $159,000

– Non-civil service merit up to 3% $196,000

– Health insurance premiums up 15% $164,000

– Payroll taxes and retirement $177,000

23

24



13

25

Significant Changes

• Clothing expenditures in Fire Suppression 
decrease by $105,840 after the purchase of bunker 
gear in FY 2021

• Appropriations for the annual street maintenance 
program stabilizes at $500,000 compared to the 
$750,000 supplemental appropriation in FY 2021

• Refuse collection costs increase by $210,957 due 
to a growing customer base

26

Significant Changes

• Consulting fees increase by $59,000 to perform a  
compensation study and to update the ten-year 
historic district study

• Appropriations for contingencies/pay plan changes 
are reclassified into division budgets

• Capital expenditures decrease by $80,000 after the 
acquisition of assets during FY 2021

• Capital project and equipment transfers decline 
$426,500 from the amended amount in 2021

25

26



14

27

Debt Service Fund
FY22 Statement of Fund Balance

 Projected Spendable Balance, Sept 30, 2021 73,237$        

Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:
FY22 Revenue 1,213,020     
FY22 Expenditures (1,180,870)   

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance 32,150          

Spendable Fund Balance, Sept 30, 2022 105,387$      

Outstanding Debt
as of October 1, 2021

Bond Issuance Description
Outstanding

Amount

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2003 $       390,000

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005 $       830,000

Certificates of Obligation, Series 2008 $       653,400

Certificates of Obligation, Series 2015 $       795,000

G.O. Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 $    1,015,000

Certificates of Obligation, Series 2018 $    2,100,000

G.O. Refunding Bonds, Series 2019 $    4,450,000

Tax-Supported Debt Outstanding $  10,233,400

28

27

28



15

Annual Debt Service Payments 
on Tax-Supported Debt

29

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035

Interest Principal

30

Information Technology Fund
FY22 Statement of Fund Balance

 Projected Spendable Balance, Sept 30, 2021 47,648$        

Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:
FY22 Revenue 893,300        
FY22 Expenditures (838,200)      

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance 55,100          

Spendable Fund Balance, Sept 30, 2022 102,748$      

29

30



16

31

Information Technology Fund
Expenses by Category

Personnel   $203,130

Supplies        127,140

Maintenance         411,490

Services         96,440

Capital Outlay 0

Total                   $838,200

Personnel
24%

Maintenance
49%

Personnel Supplies Maintenance

Services Capital Outlay

32

Significant Changes

• Small equipment expenses increase by $56,000 to 
purchase several computers for police in 
accordance with the computer replacement plan

• Computer system maintenance costs increase by 
$60,000 due to new software purchases and 
licensing

• Capital outlay falls by $182,500 after the purchase 
of several copiers and servers in FY21 as well as 
the completion of a fiber installation project

31

32



17

33

Building Maintenance Fund
FY22 Statement of Fund Balance

 Projected Spendable Balance, Sept 30, 2021 59,636$        

Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:
FY22 Revenue 458,150        
FY22 Expenditures (418,890)      

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance 39,260          

Spendable Fund Balance, Sept 30, 2022 98,896$        

34

Building Maintenance Fund
Expenses by Category

Personnel   $289,600

Supplies        31,710

Maintenance           69,610

Services         13,690

Transfers 14,280

Total                   $418,890 Personnel
69%

Maintenance
17%

Personnel Supplies Maintenance

Services Transfers

33

34



18

35

Significant Changes

• Personnel costs increase by $44,730 due to 
position changes and modifications to the 
salary allocation schedule

• HVAC expenses decrease by $66,380 after 
replacing several units in FY 2021

36

Hotel / Motel Fund
FY22 Statement of Fund Balance

 Projected Spendable Balance, Sept 30, 2021 386,772$      

Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:
FY22 Revenue 183,100        
FY22 Expenditures (180,070)      

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance 3,030            

Spendable Fund Balance, Sept 30, 2022 389,802$      

35

36



19

37

Hotel / Motel Fund
Expenditures by Category

Personnel   $  32,530

Supplies        100

Services         43,940

SSP 78,500

Transfers 25,000

Total                   $180,070

Services
24%

Sponsorship, 
Support & 

Preservation
44%

Personnel

Supplies

Services

Sponsorship, Support & Preservation

Transfers

38

Significant Changes

• Tax revenue reaches pre-COVID levels at 
$181,580

• Marketing expenditures increase by $16,700 to 
purchase signage and advertising

• Tourism sponsorship grows by $12,500 to 
$62,500

• Visitor Center support remains at $12,500
• Hotel/Motel funding for historical preservation 

efforts (Standpipe) deferred until FY23

37

38



20

39

In Summary

• A growing property tax base provides sufficient 
resources to sustain current service levels

• Sales tax revenue continues to rise 

• General Fund budget includes
– Public safety operational enhancements

– Merit adjustments up to 3% for employees

– Annual street maintenance funding of $500,000

– Contributions to other agencies totaling $140,650, 
including $25,000 to Belton Area Citizens for Seniors 
and $30,000 to Hill Country Transit District

40

In Summary

• Debt service remains stable at $1.2 million

• The internal service funds provide services for FY 
2022 with limited cost increases 

• Hotel/Motel Fund revenue has reached pre-
pandemic levels

39

40



21

41

Upcoming 
Budget Related Items

• Water/Sewer Fund

• Drainage Fund

• BEDC

• TIRZ Fund

• Five-Year Capital Improvements Program

• Strategic Plan

• Budget Calendar

Questions/Comments?

42

41

42



City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #4 
 
Consider a resolution of support for the 2021 Federal Defense Community Infrastructure 
Program (DCIP) Grant proposed by the Heart of Texas Defense Alliance for the Fort Hood 
SH9 Project. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Sam Listi, City Manager 
 
Background 
 
The City of Belton combines with other cities and counties in the Central Texas Region* to 
form the Heart of Texas Defense Alliance (HOTDA). The HOTDA works to understand, 
support and enhance the partnership between Fort Hood and the Region, given the $25 
billion annual economic impact generated by Fort Hood. The City’s annual membership fee 
in HOTDA is $5,630. 
 
*Belton, Copperas Cove, Killeen, Gatesville, Harker Heights, Temple, Lampasas, and Counties of 
Bell, Coryell, Lampasas as well as Fort Hood 
 
DEAAG Grant Program 
 
Each legislative session, the Texas Legislature sets aside competitive grant funding, 
administered by the Texas Military Preparedness Commission, to maintain and improve 
military value of U.S. military installations in Texas. There is a current “call” for projects in 
the $5 million range.  
 
Two past funded grant projects include: 
 

• 2015: $5.3M for renovation of Fort Hood Radar Approach Control Facility (Killeen 
was sponsor) 

• 2017: $4.8M for airfield digital security system for Killeen-Fort Hood Regional Airfield 
(Bell County was sponsor) 

 
One past grant project that was not funded: 
 

• 2019: $3.315M application for two ramps connecting Tank Destroyer Road to SH9  
 
Project benefits remain and include enhancing: 
 

• Traffic connectivity for access to/from important Fort Hood facilities; 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 2 of 2   
 

• Military readiness for troop deployments; 
• Traffic safety by separating commercial military vehicles from area neighborhoods; 

and 
• Multi-modal support by linking For Hood’s rail yard, container storage area and 

industrial areas to commercial truck services. 
 
A new Federal grant has emerged, and HOTDA proposes to apply under the same terms as 
the 2019 DEAAG State grant. 
 
Cost Share Summary 
 
The estimated project cost is $5.1M. A grant application of $3.315M is anticipated. 
Copperas Cove has agreed to be the project sponsor and is contributing $500,000. Fort 
Hood is contributing $500,000, plus in-kind costs (fencing and ROW). TxDOT will perform 
the design and is contributing these services as an in-kind cost. The remaining $121,187 is 
allocated across remaining cities and counties leaving Belton’s share at $6,770. As a 
partner in the HOTDA, we believe this is a reasonable cost for the anticipated Regional 
impact of a $5M grant. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The local cost share of $6,770 is not budgeted in FY 2022. If grant is awarded a budget 
amendment can be presented for ratification. 
  
Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of the resolution indicating Belton project commitment for our local 
cost share. 
 
Attachments 
Email request from Keith Sledd, HOTDA Executive Director 
Grant Process/Proposed Project 
Resolution 



From: keith.sledd@hotda.org <keith.sledd@hotda.org>  
Sent: Friday, June 4, 2021 11:02 AM 
To: 'Bill Parry' <william.parry@ci.gatesville.tx.us>; Bob Van Til <BVanTil@BeltonTexas.Gov>; 'Brian L Dosa' 
<brian.l.dosa.civ@mail.mil>; 'Brynn Myers' <bmyers@templetx.gov>; 'David Ellison (City of Killeen)' 
<dellison@killeentexas.gov>; 'David Mitchell' <dmitchell@ci.harker-heights.tx.us>; 'David Olson Temple Asst City 
Mgr' <dolson@templetx.gov>; 'Hilary Shine - City of Killeen' <HShine@killeentexas.gov>; 'Judge David Blackburn' 
<David.Blackburn@bellcounty.texas.gov>; 'Judge Roger Miller' <countyjudge@coryellcounty.org>; 'Judy Paradice' 
<jparadice@killeentexas.gov>; 'Kent Cagle' <kcagle@killeentexas.gov>; 'Kristina L Manning' 
<kristina.l.manning.civ@mail.mil>; 'Alexander, Jill M CIV USARMY ID-READINESS (USA)' 
<jill.m.alexander.civ@mail.mil>; 'Mark Hyde (Harker Heights)' <mhyde@ci.harker-heights.tx.us>; 'Ryan Haverlah - 
City Manager' <rhaverlah@copperascovetx.gov>; Sam Listi <SListi@BeltonTexas.Gov>; John@killeenchamber.com; 
'Phyllis Gogue' <phyllis@gkcc.com> 
Cc: 'Kendall Cox' <kendallpcox@gmail.com>; 'Darby, Colin CIV USARMY IMCOM CENTRAL (USA)' 
<colin.darby.civ@mail.mil>; Katheryn Light <admin1@hotda.org> 
Subject: Defense Community Infrastructure Program- Local Cost Share 
Importance: High 
 
Ladies & Gentlemen on 25 January I informed you that the SH9 Access Ramp DEAAG Project for Fort 
Hood was not selected by the Texas Military Preparedness Commission.  In that message I asked that 
you maintain your DEAAG funding commitment for another grant opportunity.   
 
Another grant opportunity opened in late May for the Defense Community Infrastructure Program with the 
Pre-proposal Webinar this last Wednesday, 2 June.  The grant application is due by 12 July with 
selections in August and funding released in September.   So this is a relatively quick turnaround and 
opportunity. 
 
In conjunction with Copperas Cove and Fort Hood, we intend to submit the same project for a grant from 
the Defense Community Infrastructure Program (DCIP).   DCIP is similar to DEAAG but funded at the 
federal level.  It is a new program in its second year of funding.  DCIP this year is prioritizing selection 
criteria as #1 Military Value, #2 Resiliency, and #3 Quality of Life.  The SH9 Access Ramp project directly 
impacts Military Value with ties to Resiliency and lessor ties to Quality of Life.   This project is a good fit 
for DCIP given this year’s criteria.  All it costs us is the time, paper, and ink to put the grant together.   
 
I ask that each city and county that contributed to the DEAAG Grant application, look at how it authorized 
its contribution to the DEAAG gran and make any changes necessary to approve the same funding level 
for the DCIP grant.  There is no change in the amount your respective entity committed to DEAAG as we 
switch to a DCIP grant.  Please let me know, if you need me to present at a city council or commissioners 
court meeting to explain the grant change. 
 
I ask that each city and county that contributed to the DEAAG Grant application, look at how it authorized 
its contribution to the DEAAG gran and make any changes necessary to approve the same funding level 
for the DCIP grant.  There is no change in the amount your respective entity committed to DEAAG as we 
switch to a DCIP grant.   
 
Please let me know if you have questions or need me to present to your City Council or Commissioners 
Court. 
 
V/R Keith 
Keith Sledd 
Executive Director 
Heart of Texas Defense Alliance 
254-690-4045 (O) 
254-702-8045 (C) 
 
 

mailto:keith.sledd@hotda.org
mailto:keith.sledd@hotda.org
mailto:keith.sledd@hotda.org
mailto:keith.sledd@hotda.org
mailto:william.parry@ci.gatesville.tx.us
mailto:william.parry@ci.gatesville.tx.us
mailto:BVanTil@BeltonTexas.Gov
mailto:BVanTil@BeltonTexas.Gov
mailto:brian.l.dosa.civ@mail.mil
mailto:brian.l.dosa.civ@mail.mil
mailto:bmyers@templetx.gov
mailto:bmyers@templetx.gov
mailto:dellison@killeentexas.gov
mailto:dellison@killeentexas.gov
mailto:dmitchell@ci.harker-heights.tx.us
mailto:dmitchell@ci.harker-heights.tx.us
mailto:dolson@templetx.gov
mailto:dolson@templetx.gov
mailto:HShine@killeentexas.gov
mailto:HShine@killeentexas.gov
mailto:David.Blackburn@bellcounty.texas.gov
mailto:David.Blackburn@bellcounty.texas.gov
mailto:countyjudge@coryellcounty.org
mailto:countyjudge@coryellcounty.org
mailto:jparadice@killeentexas.gov
mailto:jparadice@killeentexas.gov
mailto:kcagle@killeentexas.gov
mailto:kcagle@killeentexas.gov
mailto:kristina.l.manning.civ@mail.mil
mailto:kristina.l.manning.civ@mail.mil
mailto:jill.m.alexander.civ@mail.mil
mailto:jill.m.alexander.civ@mail.mil
mailto:mhyde@ci.harker-heights.tx.us
mailto:mhyde@ci.harker-heights.tx.us
mailto:rhaverlah@copperascovetx.gov
mailto:rhaverlah@copperascovetx.gov
mailto:SListi@BeltonTexas.Gov
mailto:SListi@BeltonTexas.Gov
mailto:John@killeenchamber.com
mailto:John@killeenchamber.com
mailto:phyllis@gkcc.com
mailto:phyllis@gkcc.com
mailto:kendallpcox@gmail.com
mailto:kendallpcox@gmail.com
mailto:colin.darby.civ@mail.mil
mailto:colin.darby.civ@mail.mil
mailto:admin1@hotda.org
mailto:admin1@hotda.org


2021 Defense Community Infrastructure Grant Project 

 
1 

POC: keith.sledd@hotda.org  
 

Background:   

➢ Defense Community Infrastructure Project (DCIP) – is a federal grant program 

administered by the DoD Office of Local Defense Community Cooperation (OLDCC) to 

maintain and improve the military value of US military installations.  First authorized doe 10 

years in FY19 with funding in FY20 and FY21.  Funding is allocated by Congress each year.     

➢ Fort Hood - is located on 342 square miles of land in Central Texas and home to 37,000+ 

soldiers and 50,000+ family members with over 70% living in the neighboring communities.  

Fort Hood generates $29.9B in annual economic impact which is over 24% of the total 

economic impact from the 13 military installations located in Texas.   

2021 DCIP Project:  Fort Hood Access Ramps - SH9 to Tank Destroyer Boulevard. The 

project provides access roads from SH9 to Tank Destroyer Boulevard on the west side of Fort 

Hood near the Fort Hood railyard improving surface deployability while improving ingress and 

egress mobility for installation transportation.  

➢ Project Description:  Construct access ramp from northbound SH-9 to Tank Destroyer 

Boulevard and access ramp from Old Georgetown Road to southbound SH-9.  This project 

provides multiple improvements that support Fort Hood and the KTMPO 2040 goals.  The 

project improves Fort Hood's surface deployability while improving ingress and egress 

mobility.  The project reduces congestion on IH-14 access roads by providing Fort Hood the 

capability to relocate commercial truck access from the Clarke Road Access Control Point 

(ACP) to the Tank Destroyer ACP.  The project improves safety by reducing commercial 

truck traffic intermingling with privately-owned vehicle and school district traffic at the Clarke 

Road ACP as well as reduce commercial truck traffic in non-industrial areas of the Fort Hood 

cantonment area. 

➢ Project Support:  City of Copperas Cove is the sponsor for the project with local cost share 

contributions from the cities of Belton, Bell County, Copperas Cove, Coryell County, Fort 

Hood, Gatesville, Harker Heights, Killeen, and Temple.  TXDOT is providing project design 

and completing the NEPA.   

➢ Project Discussion:  

1. Current highway design only allows SH9 southbound traffic to exit to Tank Destroyer 

Boulevard and only northbound traffic to exit from Tank Destroyer Boulevard to SH9 

preventing commercial trucks from accessing the installation from IH-14 and US-190 via 

SH9.   

2. All commercial trucks currently enter Fort Hood through the Clarke Road Access Control 

Point (ACP) on IH-14/US-190 which also services local traffic entering the installation.  

Commercial trucks enter Fort Hood using the Clarke Road exit ramp from IH-14/US-190 

for security screening.  During peak travel times traffic waiting to access the installation 

accumulates on the exit ramp from IH-14/US-190 and frequently backs up onto IH-14 

itself.   

3. The Access Ramp project will enable Fort Hood to relocate the commercial truck ACP 

from Clarke Road to Tank Destroyer Road and allow commercial truck traffic access 

from IH-14 and US-190 via SH9.  The Tank Destroyer ACP is adjacent to the majority of 

mailto:keith.sledd@hotda.org


2021 Defense Community Infrastructure Grant Project 

 
2 

POC: keith.sledd@hotda.org  
 

Fort Hood’s “industrial area” reducing commercial truck traffic through non-industrial 

installation areas. This project facilitates Fort Hood deployment operations while also 

improving safety and security. 

4. TXDOT prepared a 95% Engineering Designs and will provide the NEPA requirements 

for the project.  Upon award of grant funding, TXDOT will execute the contract to 

construct the project.  The project is complimentary to a future military construction 

project to build a new truck loading area vicinity of the Fort Hood railyard.   

➢ Project Benefits: 

1. Connectivity - the project connects Fort Hood's railyard, container storage yard, and 

industrial area to IH-14/US-190 via SH9 access from Tank Destroyer Boulevard on the 

west side of Fort Hood.  Current SH9 access does not facilitate ingress and egress of 

military equipment and supplies via commercial trucks via SH9 to IH-14/US-190 with 

onward movement to IH-35, US-84, US-281, and US-183.  The project connects Fort 

Hood's surface transportation network more effectively with the state and national 

highway systems facilitating routine traffic and deployment operations traffic during 

exigent circumstances.   

2. Readiness – the project improves military readiness by providing enhanced surface 

deployability for Active, Reserve, and National Guard units deploying from and/or 

mobilizing then deploying from Fort Hood to meet national defense requirements or 

under exigent circumstances. 

3. Power Projection – the project improves Fort Hood’s power projection capability as a 

Mobilization Force Generating Installation.  Fort Hood is one of the Army’s two 

designated Mobilization Force Generating Installations where all Reserve and National 

Guard units initially move to mobilize, train, and subsequently deploy to meet national 

defense requirements.  The project improves surface transportation capability to meet 

this critical mission. 

4. Trafficability – relocating the commercial truck access point to Tank Destroyer Boulevard 

via access from SH9 reduces congestion.  The Clarke Road entrance frequently 

becomes congested with commercial truck, privately owned vehicles, and school district 

transportation entering the installation.  This leads to traffic backing up along the access 

road from IH-14/US-190 to the Clarke Road gate with occasional backups onto IH-

14/US-190 itself.   

5. Safety - relocating commercial truck traffic to the Tank Destroyer Boulevard Gate 

increases safety by reducing the comingling of commercial traffic with private and school 

district traffic currently occurring at the Clarke Road Gate.  Commercial trucks carrying 

all types of cargo from combat vehicles to ammunition to fuel intermingle with privately-

owned vehicle traffic and school district traffic waiting to enter the Clarke Road gate.  

After entering, trucks continue onward to the Clarke Road/Tank Destroyer intersection 

which is adjacent to the Comanche III housing area, Oveta Culp Hobby Elementary 

School, and Audie Murphy Middle School.   

mailto:keith.sledd@hotda.org


2021 Defense Community Infrastructure Grant Project 

 
3 

POC: keith.sledd@hotda.org  
 

6. Multi-Modal Support - the project provides initial multi-modal support by linking Fort 

Hood's railyard, container storage yard, and industrial area to commercial truck services 

via access from SH9 to Tank Destroyer Boulevard.   It improves Fort Hood's deployment 

capabilities through improved surface transportation access in support of routine 

operations and increased traffic during contingency operations or exigent circumstances.   

7. Economic Development - initially the project does not provide additional economic 

development capacity to Fort Hood or Central Texas.  However, long-term the project is 

complementary to a future military-civilian joint use rail/truck multi-modal facility 

recommended in the 2016 Joint Land Use Study and the subsequent 2018 Multi-Modal 

Feasibility Study.  The nearest current multi-modal facilities to Central Texas are the 

Alliance Facility in Fort Worth and the Port of San Antonio. Central Texas/Fort Hood lies 

in the center of and a half-day truck drive to the Texas Triangle (DFW-HOU-SA) which is 

home to 5 of the 15 largest US cities, 66% of the Texas population, and 77% of the 

Texas economy.  The proposed military-civilian joint use rail/truck multi-modal facility 

would be built and operated by a public-private partnership using policies similar to other 

joint-use airfields and ports.   

8. Security & Resilience - the project improves security for Fort Hood by routing all 

commercial truck traffic through an Access Control Point on Tank Destroyer Boulevard 

separating it from the privately-owned vehicle and school district traffic entering the 

Clarke Road gate. The project improves Fort Hood transportation resilience by providing 

alternate routes for military traffic to access IH-14/US-190 and SH9/FM116 for onward 

access to IH-35, US-84, US-281, and US-183 in the event there is a traffic stoppage. 

9. Livability - The project will reduce commercial truck traffic transiting through non-

industrial areas of Fort Hood improving livability through reduced traffic, noise, and 

congestion.  The project reduces average truck movement by 5 miles one way with an 

annual cost avoidance of $1.6M in 2020 dollars while reducing atmospheric pollution by 

11.7 million grams of emissions. 

10. Freight Movement - this project improves freight movement capability for Fort Hood by 

providing commercial truck access adjacent to the Fort Hood railyard, container storage 

yard, and industrial area with onward movement to IH-14/US-190, IH-35, US-84, US-

281, and US-183 then to port or other destination.  In 2018, the commercial truck access 

point processed a total of 82,162 cargo vehicles averaging 6,847 vehicles per month.     

mailto:keith.sledd@hotda.org


2021 Defense Community Infrastructure Grant Project 

 
4 

POC: keith.sledd@hotda.org  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3

DCIP - Fort Hood SH9 Project

▪ Project Sponsor is Copperas Cove.

▪ Engineering Design and NEPA by TXDOT.

▪ Selected as #1 Project by FHTX.

▪ Goals -

✓ Provides NB SH9 Truck Access

✓ Provides SB SH9 Truck Access

✓ Supports Truck ECP move to TD Blvd

✓ Improves FHTX Deployability

✓ Supports M/M Site development

2021 Project – construct access ramps from northbound SH9 to Tank Destroyer Blvd and from 

Old Georgetown Road to southbound SH9.  

➢ Improves FHTX surface deployability while improving ingress and egress mobility for installation 

transportation.

➢ Reduces traffic congestion on IH-14 access ramps to FHTX by providing ability to relocate 

commercial truck traffic from Clarke Road ACP to Tank Destroyer ACP.

➢ Improves FHTX safety by reducing commercial truck traffic intermingling with privately-owned and 

school district traffic entering Clarke Road ACP.

DCIP Project – SH9/Tank Dest/Gtown Rd Total Cost

Ramp Northbound Route 9 to Tank 
Destroyer Blvd.

$3.1M

Ramp Old Georgetown Road to 
Southbound Route 9

$2.7M

Total Roadway Cost $5.8M

mailto:keith.sledd@hotda.org


RESOLUTION NO. 2021-20-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
SUPPORTING THE 2021 FEDERAL DEFENSE COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE 
PROGRAM GRANT (DCIP) APPLICATION PROPOSED BY THE HEART OF TEXAS 
DEFENSE ALLIANCE (HOTDA). 
 
 
 WHEREAS, there is a strong need to promote and enhance the sustainability of Ft. 
Hood in the Central Texas Region; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Heart of Texas Defense Alliance coordinates information exchanges, 
area support, and regional partnerships benefitting Ft. Hood; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Federal Government sets aside competitive grant funding to maintain 
and improve the value of U.S. military institutions in Texas; and   
 
 WHEREAS, there is a current call for projects for evaluation. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, TEXAS, THAT:  
 
 Part 1: The City of Belton, acting through its governing body, herby confirms that it 
supports the HOTDA’s proposed 2021 Federal Defense Community Infrastructure Program 
Grant application for Ft. Hood Access Ramps – SH 9 to Tank Destroyer Boulevard – at an 
estimated project cost of $5.1M. 
 
 Part 2: The City of Belton, acting through its governing body, commits to a cost share 
of $6,770 to support the 2021 DCIP grant application. 
 
 Part 3: The City of Belton commends the HOTDA, and all those who are instrumental 
in this grant application process, in order to enhance the long-term viability of Ft. Hood. 
 
 Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required, and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 22nd day of June, 2021. 
 

 
THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 

 
 

____________________________ 
Wayne Carpenter, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:                                                       
 
 
____________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk  



City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #5 
 
Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the submittal of a grant application to the U.S. 
Department of Transportation Rebuilding American Infrastructure with Sustainability and 
Equity (RAISE) for the S. Connell Street Capacity Improvement Project.   
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration - Sam Listi, City Manager 

    Jo-Ell Guzman, Grants and Special Projects Coordinator 
 
Background 
 
The Rebuilding American Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity or (RAISE) grant is 
the most recent version of the U.S. Department of Transportation 2021 RAISE Discretionary 
Grant. Previous version names were BUILD and TIGER. 
 
Council adopted a resolution that was submitted with the City’s application on May 18, 
2020, for a BUILD grant. Unfortunately, the BUILD grant application was not funded for FY 
2020.  
 
A new funding opportunity opened April 13, 2021. This RAISE grant provides 80% federal 
funding with a 20% local match. The total estimated programming funding is $1B with an 
award ceiling of $25M. The application is due on July 12, 2021, and the FY 2021 
Appropriations Act mandated the RAISE grant be awarded by November 22, 2021. 
 
The City’s proposed project is the S. Connell Capacity Improvement Street Project which is 
estimated to cost $7,500,000. The local match is $1,500,000. 
 
The South Connell Street Capacity Improvement Project is an important thoroughfare that 
will enhance regional circulation in the Bell County seat and connect many of Belton's major 
investments. The project will also improve mobility, safety, traffic efficiency, health, and the 
community's quality of life. The project proposes a landscaped, four-lane multi-purpose 
facility that will significantly enhance community and economic development and will 
facilitate links between economic, cultural, and educational areas in Belton.   
 
South Connell Street is currently a two-lane undivided rural street. It extends in a north-
south orientation, between S. Loop 121 and Interstate 14. The proposal includes adding 
capacity by expanding the road to a four-lane undivided thoroughfare with a 10-foot wide 
shared-use path (SUP) on the west side and a five-foot-wide sidewalk on the east side. The 
project will also include curb and gutter, drainage improvements, water line upgrades, and 
landscaping. 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 2 of 2   
 

The current condition of Connell Street discourages new private investment and 
development due to its lack of capacity and the cost to expand the road as needed. The 
City's Thoroughfare Plan has identified Connell Street as a Major Collector Street, and this 
project would achieve its ultimate capacity. 
 
 Fiscal Impact 
 
Amount: Local Match for Grant $1,500,000  
 
Budgeted:   Yes    No  Capital Project Funds 
 
If not budgeted:   Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed at time of 
grant award. 
 
Funding Source(s):  TIRZ 
 
Recommendation 
 
Recommend the Council adopt the resolution authorizing the grant application for the 
Connell Street Capacity Improvement Project. 
 
Attachments 
Resolution 
Map of Project 



RESOLUTION NO. 2021–21–R 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 
SUPPORTING THE SUBMISSION OF A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE U.S. 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION REBUILDING AMERICAN INFRASTRUC-
TURE WITH SUSTAINABILTY AND EQUITY (RAISE) DISCRETIONARY 
TRANSPORTATION GRANT PROGRAM FOR S. CONNELL STREET. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Belton, Texas, understands RAISE Funds are 
available for surface transportation projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Belton, Texas, supports an application for a 
RAISE grant to assist with the funding of improvements to S. Connell Street, from S. Loop 
121 to IH-14; and 
 
WHEREAS, the area surrounding S. Connell Street is experiencing significant 
development with over 1,600 dwelling units anticipated in the next few years in the vicinity 
of the IH-35 and IH-14 interchange. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1: That the City of Belton commits to meet the required project local match 
estimated at $1,500,000 and will maintain the project for the life of the facility,  
 
SECTION 2: That the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute all 
appropriate agreements and contracts necessary to submit the RAISE application and 
any follow-up documentation required or requested by the U.S. Department of 
Transportation related to this application. 
 
SECTION 3: That the City Council of the City of Belton, Texas, pledges its full support 
and hereby authorizes the City of Belton to complete and submit the RAISE application. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 22nd DAY OF JUNE, 2021 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Wayne Carpenter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



_̂
§̈¦14

§̈¦14

§̈¦14

§̈¦35

§̈¦35

§̈¦35

§̈¦35

£¤121

£¤190

£¤317

£¤121

BELTON
Downtown

LAKE RD

FM 439

CO
NN

EL
L

MA
IN

Heritage
Park II

HUEY

LAILA

Future 
Belton ISD

Education Center

New Sewer Line

Interstate 14
Improvements

BEDC
Industrial Park

TX S. Loop 121
Widening

New
TxDOT

Sidewalk

Build
Grant

Project
South Connell Street

S. Belton
SUP

S. Belton
Water and Sewer

Projects

´0 10.5 Miles

City Limits

TIRZ

Opportunity Zone 1

Opportunity Zone 2

Completed Projects
Pending Projects

Attachment 'A' - Belton BUILD 2020 - Major New Public Projects



City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #6 
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute Change Order No. 1 for the 2021 Street 
Overlay Project to add additional streets and scope of work to the project. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Public Works – Angellia Points, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
Background 
 
On April 27, 2021, Council authorized the award of the construction contract with Texas 
Materials Group, of Cedar Park, Texas, for the 2021 Street Overlay Project in the amount of 
$586,230. The bid from Texas Materials came in at an excellent price of $163,770 under the 
available total funding of $750,000.  
 
Contract law states up to 25% of the bid can be added by change order. 25% of $586,230 is 
$146,557.50. This Council agenda item is proposing Change Order No. 1, which adds the 
following to the scope of work. All prices for this additional work are consistent with the base 
bid, and any new items have been negotiated with the contractor. 
 

1. N. Blair Street between E. 4th Ave and E. 5th Ave – Winter Storm Uri Damage  
2. Chisholm Trail Parkway between Ingram Lane and Spring Canyon Road – Winter 

Storm Uri Damage  
3. Chisholm Trail Parkway between Matador and Dunns Canyon – Winter Storm Uri 

Damage 
4. E. Ave C between Wall and east of the median striping – Winter Storm Uri Damage 
5. Commerce Drive between Sparta Road roundabout and the Goodwill Entrance 

Driveway – Winter Storm Uri Damage 
6. Remove and replace 50 linear feet of damaged curb and gutter on Forest Drive 
7. Remove: Wells between E. 7th and E. 8th Ave, E. 7th Ave - end of road, west of 

Wells; After evaluation, mill and overlay is not feasible due to the crown in the road 
and lack of base that would be left on the roadway; a mill and overlay may be more 
damaging to the road than good at this time. Further evaluation is needed on the 
proper rehabilitation of Wells and E. 7th Ave.  

 
The total cost to add the streets and work listed above is $77,112.45, which is under the 
25% threshold and still within the available street overlay funding. As the project 
progresses, there is around $63,000 remaining that can be used for contingency and/or to 
add scope to the project.  
 
No additional time is proposed to be added to the contract.  
 



City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Fiscal Impact 
 
The total amount for Change Order No. 1 is $77,112.45, under the available funding amount 
and the 25% cap.  
 
Budgeted:   Yes     No  
 
Recommendation 
 
Authorize the City Manager to execute Change Order No. 1 for the 2021 Street Overlay 
Project in order to add additional streets and scope of work to the project. 
 
Attachments 
Change Order No. 1 



PROJECT:       2021 Street Overlay Project

OWNER:          City of Belton

CONTRACTOR:    Texas Materials, Cedar Park Texas

ENGINEER:     Angellia Points, P.E.     

CHANGE ORDER #:              1

ADD ITEMS (SEE ABOVE AND QUANTITY LIST)

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

CO 

No. 1-

A

Provide and Install 2-Inch Mill 

(Full Width of Road) and 2-inch 

HMAC Type "D" Overlay with 

Tack Coat, Complete For

9,294 SY $9.65 $89,687.10 

CO 

No. 1-

B

Provide and Install 5' x5'  Concrete 

Manhole Collar, Complete For
4 EA $839.00 $3,356.00 

CO 

No. 1-

C

Replace Existing Water Valve Box 

with New Valve Box, Complete 

For

3 EA $170.00 $510.00 

CO 

No. 1-

D

Provide and Install 24"x24" 

Concrete Valve Box Collar, 

Complete For

3 EA $270.00 $810.00 

CO 

No. 1-

E

Provide and Install 24" Wide 

White TY-I Thermoplastic Stop 

Bar, Complete For

45 LF $8.00 $360.00 

CO 

No. 1-

F

Provide TY II-B-B Raised 

Pavement Markers (Blue), 

Complete For

6 EA $20.00 $120.00 

CO 

No. 1-

G

Provide and Install 24" Wide 

White TY-I Thermoplastic 

Crosswalk Pavement Markings, 

Complete For

59 LF $18.50 $1,091.50 

CO 

No. 1-

H

Remove and Replace Existing 

Concrete Valley Gutter with 

Reinforced Concrete Valley Gutter 

at 4th/N Blair (5'  wide, 75'  long, 

8" Deep) Per City Details T-07, 

Complete For

42 SY $177.60 $7,459.20 

CO 

No. 1-I

Provide and Install 4-inch TY-I 

Single White Solid Pavement 

Marking, Complete For

3,191 LF $2.15 $6,860.65 

CO 

No. 1-J

Provide and Install Yellow Raised 

Reflective Pavement Markers 

DMS 4200 Type II-A-A, 

Complete For

40 EA $10.00 $400.00 

CHANGE ORDER

Make the following additions, modifications or deletions to the work described in the Contract Documents:

This Change Order No. 1 is intended add the following streets to the contract: 

N Blair Street between E 4th and E 5th Ave

Chisholm Trail Parkway between Spring Canyon and the median east of Ingram

Chisholm Trail Parkway between Matador and Dunns Canyon

E Ave C between Wall and east of the median striping (Continuing the Base Bid street to the east)

Commerce Drive between Sparta Road roundabout and the Goodwill Entrance Driveway

Adding 50LF of curb removal and replacement on Forest Drive. 

Remove: Wells between E 7th and E 8th Ave, E 7th Ave - end of road, west of Wells

All pavement striping shall be thermoplastic with glass beads. 

C/O1-1



CO 

No. 1-

K

Provide and Install Yellow Gore 

Striping 12" Yellow Solid (Hash 

Marks)

34 LF $15.00 $510.00 

CO 

No. 1-

L

Provide and Install Yellow Gore 

Striping 24" Yellow Solid (Hash 

Marks)

77 LF $30.00 $2,310.00 

CO 

No. 1-

M

Provide and Install 4" Solid TY-I 

4-inch Double Yellow Pavement 

Striping, Complete For

300 LF $4.30 $1,290.00 

CO 

No. 1-

N

Provide and Install Left/Right 

White Pavement Directional 

Arrow Striping, Complete For

2 EA $200.00 $400.00 

CO 

No. 1-

O

Provide and Install "ONLY" 

White Pavement Striping, 

Complete For

2 EA $200.00 $400.00 

CO 

No. 1-

P

Provide and Install 8-inch TY-I 

Single White Solid Pavement 

Marking, Complete For

40 LF $4.30 $172.00 

CO 

No. 1-

Q

Remove and Replace Existing 

Concrete Curb and Gutter on 

Forest Drive, Complete For

50 LF $85.10 $4,255.00 

SUBTOTAL - ADD $119,991.45 

DEDUCT ITEM: WELLS (8TH AND 7TH) AND E 7TH AVE (END OF ROAD, W OF WELLS)

CO 

No. 1-2

Remove Wells (8th to 7th) and W 

7th Ave (End of Road, W of 

Wells): Provide and Install 2-inch 

Mill (Full Width of Road) and 2-

inch HMAC Type "D" Overlay 

with Tack Coat, Complete For

(2,060) SY $9.65 ($19,879.00)

CO 

No. 1-4

Remove Wells (8th to 7th):  

Replace Existing Water Valve Box 

with New Valve Box, Complete 

(2) EA $170.00 ($340.00)

CO 

No. 1-5

Remove Wells (8th to 7th): 

Provide and Install 24"x24" 

Concrete Valve Box Collar, 

(2) EA $270.00 ($540.00)

CO 

No. 1-

11

Remove Wells (8th to 7th): 

Provide and Install 4-inch Mill 

(Full Width of Road) and 4-inch 

HMAC Type "B" Overlay with 

Tack Coat on Wells Street As 

Directed, Complete For

(1,106) SY $20.00 ($22,120.00)

SUBTOTAL - DEDUCT ($42,879.00)

TOTAL ADD/DEDUCT $77,112.45 

Change Order

Total Original Contract Amount $

Previous Net Change in Contract Amount $

Change in Contract Amount (This Change Order No.  1) $

Net Change in Contract Amount $

Revised Total Contract Amount $ 13%

Revised Contract Time, Days

Original Completion Date

Revised Final Completion Date

The compensation agreed upon in this Change Order is full, complete and final payment for all costs the

Contractor may incur as a result of or relating to this change whether said costs are known, unknown, foreseen

or unforeseen at this time, including without limitation, any cost for delay (for which only revised time is

available), extended overhead, ripple or impact cost, or any other effect on changed or unchanged work as a

result of this Change Order.

4 months from NTP

No revision

0.00

586,230.00                           

$77,112.45

$77,112.45

663,342.45                           

0

C/O1-2



Recommended By City Engineer: Approved By Contractor:

By: By:

City Engineer                                Date Texas Materials Group Date

Brandon LeMay

Approved by City of Belton: Approved as to Form:

By: By:

City Manager                                Date Director of Finance Date  

C/O1-3



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 1 of 3   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item                   
 
 
      Date:  June 22, 2021
      Case No.: Z-21-05 

Request: Reconsideration of a Zoning 
Change from SF-1 to PD- SF-1 

Applicant: Belton Engineering 
Owner:    LGGD Properties, LLC 

 
Agenda Item #7 
 
Hold a public hearing and reconsider a zoning change from Single Family Residential-1 District 
to a Planned Development – Single Family Residential-1 District to allow a flat or shallow pitch 
roof on 6.011 acres located on East 25th Avenue, described as the Guess Dulany subdivision, 
Block 1, Lots 1-11.   
  
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Tina Moore, Planner 
 
Current Zoning:  Single Family Residential-1 District (SF-1) 
  
Proposed Zoning:  Planned Development – Single Family Residential-1 (PD-SF1) 
     
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation: Residential  
 
Design Standards Type Area 14:   
 
Type Area 14 is currently and projected to be primarily single lot developments. This includes 
the former Leon Valley Golf Course, River Fair, Red Rock and Smith Dawson Ranch areas.  
 
Background/Case Summary 
 
This item was presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission at the May 18, 2021, meeting 
and was recommended for approval to the City Council. City Council subsequently denied the 
request at their meeting on May 25, 2021. As a result of the Council’s action, the applicant 
requested that the item be reconsidered. Since the City Council questioned construction 
standards for a flat roof, this report includes additional information about building code 
requirements for roof construction as adopted in the 2015 International Residential Code (IRC).    
 
The applicant is seeking a zoning change because the Exterior Building Design Standards do 
not allow flat or shallow pitch roofs. Section IV.C.4, Minimum Exterior Construction Standards, 
of the Design Standards, in Section 7.1 of the Belton Zoning Ordinance requires Single Family 
and Duplex Residential structures to have a minimum roof pitch of 6:12, unless otherwise 

 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 2 of 3   
 

stated in the applicable Zoning District. A flat roof has a very low slope, between 1:4 to 1:2 to 
allow proper drainage.  
 
The applicant is proposing a 1:12 or greater roof pitch. He is proposing a rubberized application 
known as Thermoplastic Polyolefin (TPO) that will be applied on the roof for weatherproofing. 
The 2015 IRC can accommodate this type of roof system; however, a detailed construction 
plan is required for a complete review. Additional information from the 2015 IRC is attached 
related to roof construction.  
  
The Guess Dulany final plat was approved in March 2020. 
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
Existing Conditions: The surrounding areas to the east, west and north are zoned SF-1 and 
are developed with residential site built homes. Heritage Park is south and east of this 
subdivision and is zoned Agricultural.  
 
Allowable Land Uses:  The proposed zoning will not alter the permitted uses in the SF-1 Zoning 
District, which permits detached housing. The zoning regulations include minimum lot size, and 
setback requirements will remain in place. These requirements will not be altered with this 
zoning change.  
 
Future Land Use Map 
 
The FLUM identifies this general area as residential. The proposed use is consistent with the 
FLUM and adjacent zoning district. Therefore, the proposed PD-SF-1 zoning district appears 
to be reasonable.  
 
Recommendation 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this item at their meeting on June 15, 2021, and 
unanimously recommended approval of the requested a zoning change from SF-1 to PD-SF-1 
Zoning District subject to the conditions below: 
 
1. The use of the property shall conform to the SF-1 District in all aspects. 
2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 14 Design 

Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance with 
the exception of: 
 
a. Section IV.C.4, Minimum Exterior Construction Designs, and requirements for a 

minimum roof pitch of 6:12 to allow for an alternative roof pitch that meets the 
requirement of the adopted International Residential Codes. 

 
Attachments
Zoning application and proposed home design 
Property Location Map 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 3 of 3   
 

Zoning map 
Aerial photo 
Map with zoning notice boundary (200’)/Zoning notice to owners/Property owner’s list 
Belton Residential Roof Requirement summary 
P&Z Minutes Excerpt 
Ordinance 



















































1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, June 15, 2021
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. at the Harris Community Center, 401 North Alexander 
Street. Commission members who were present: Chair Brett Baggerly, Vice Chair Dave Covington, Quinton 
Locklin, David Jarratt, Ty Hendrick and Josh Knowles. The following members were absent: Stephanie O’Banion, 
Luke Potts and Zach Krueger. The following staff members were present: Director of Planning Bob van Til, 
Planner Tina Moore, Building Official Bruce Ebbert, Planning Clerk Laura Livingston and IT Specialist Alex 
Munger.  
 
 
4. Z-21-05      Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Single Family-1 (SF-1) to Planned 

Development-Single Family-1 – to allow for new homes to be built with a flat or shallow roof – on 
approximately 6.011 acres located on East 25th Avenue, described as Guess Dulany Subdivision, 
Block 1, Lots 1-11.  (Audio 1:48) 
 
Staff Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report (Exhibit A).  
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing, with no one requesting to speak he closed the public hearing.  
 
Commission Member Mr. Josh Knowles asked if neighbors were again notified. Ms. Moore said yes and one 
letter in protest was received by Staff, regarding the change in use of the property not the flat roof. 
Commission members commented on the style of homes in the neighborhood.  
 
Commission Member Mr. Hendrick made a motion to approve item Z-21-05 as recommended by Staff. 
Commission Member Mr. Jarratt seconded the motion. The motion was approved with 6 ayes, 0 nays. 



 ORDINANCE NO. 2021-12 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON BY 
CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL-1 
DISTRICT TO A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT – SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL-1 
DISTRICT 6.011 ACRES LOCATED ON EAST 25TH AVENUE, DESCRIBED AS THE 
GUESS DULANY SUBDIVISION, BLOCK 1, LOTS 1-11. 
 

WHEREAS, Larry Guess, the property owner and developer of the subdivision, has 
presented a petition duly signed, to the City Planning & Zoning Commission and filed said 
petition with the City Clerk of the City of Belton, and due notice of filing of said petition and 
hearing on said petition has been given as required by the City Zoning Ordinance and by 
law, and a hearing on said petition before the City Planning & Zoning Commission of the 
City of Belton was set for the 15th day of June, 2021, at 5:30 p.m. for hearing and adoption, 
said district being described as follows: 

 
Guess Dulany subdivision, Block 1, Lots 1-11. 

 (location map attached as Exhibit “A”) 
 
WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 

said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 22nd day of June 
2021, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said district located on a tract of land as more fully and completely 
described above, be and is hereby changed from Single Family Residential-1 District to a 
Planned Development – Single Family Residential-1 District in accordance to Section 10, 
Single Family Two Zoning District, and Section 32 – Planned Development District, and the 
Design Standards in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.. The Zoning 
Ordinance of the City of Belton is hereby amended, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The use of the property shall conform to the SF-1 District in all aspects. 

 
2. The development of the property shall conform to all applicable Type Area 14 

Design Standards, as identified in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning 
Ordinance with the exception of: 

 
a. Section IV.C.4, Minimum Exterior Construction Designs, and requirements for a 

minimum roof pitch of 6:12 to allow for an alternative roof pitch that meets the 
requirement of the adopted International Residential Codes. 



This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City of Belton 
and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 22nd day of June 
2021, by a vote of ______ ayes and ______ nays. 
 

SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 
22nd day of June, 2021. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Wayne Carpenter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



EXHIBIT  "A"



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 1 of 3   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item                   
 
 
       Date:   June 22, 2021  
       Case No.:  Z-21-07 

Request:  CH – PD CH and SF-2 
Applicant/Owners:  City of Belton 

 
Agenda Item #8 
 
Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Commercial Highway to Planned 
Development - Commercial Highway and Single Family-2 District — to allow for commercial 
uses and single-family homes — for properties located at the northwest corner of South Wall 
Street and East Avenue R described as the Cameron Subdivision, Block 1, Lots 1-8 and Block 
2, Lots 1-4.  
 
Originating Department:  Planning Department – Tina Moore - Planner 
 
Current Zoning:  Commercial Highway (CH) 
 
Proposed Zoning: Planned Development - Commercial Highway and Single Family-2 District 
 
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Designation:  Commercial  
 
Design Standards Type Areas 2: This Type Area includes various blocks along the IH 35 and 
US 190 corridor. The existing and projected growth of this area is primarily commercial highway 
frontage uses. Opportunities are mixed uses, hotels, restaurants, new car dealerships, multi-
story office and other similar commercial uses.  
 
Background/Case Summary 
 
This is a City-Initiated zoning change. The intent is to change the non-conforming status of an 
existing residential subdivision currently within the Commercial Highway Zoning District. The 
Cameron Subdivision plat, approved in 1955, consists of 11 lots located near the IH 35 corridor. 
Residential uses are considered legal non-conforming within the CH zoning district. Existing 
residential uses are permitted and allowed to be expanded and remodeled. However, in case 
a natural disaster or a fire destroys more than 60% of the reasonable value of the home, it 
cannot be reconstructed and must comply with the CH zoning requirements. 
 
Staff was recently contacted by a property owner attempting to sell her property in this 
subdivision. She was notified by the loan underwriter that the home is a legal non-conforming 
use and could not be sold unless it was rezoned in the event the home needs to be 
reconstructed after a fire or other disaster.  



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 2 of 3   
 

The 1972 City of Belton Official Zoning Map shows properties west of South Penelope as zoned 
CH and property east of South Penelope as SF-2 in this subdivision. The 2002 updated zoning 
map, depicted the entire subdivision as CH.  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission held a work session with the staff on May 18th. Staff 
suggested a zoning change from CH to Planned Development Commercial Highway and Single 
Family-2 to cure the nonconforming status concerns. The commission recommended that staff 
proceed with a City-initiated zoning change to allow residential uses in this neighborhood. The 
commission also recommended that staff look at other residential areas within the CH zoning 
district and provide possible solutions to prevent similar issues in the future. 
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
Existing Conditions: This subdivision is developed with single family residences. The properties 
to the west and south are zoned CH. The property north is zoned C-1 with a SUP for Mini-
Storage Warehouse. The properties east are zoned SF-2.  
 
Direction Zoning  Use 
North C-1 w/ SUP Mini-Storage 

Warehouse 
AAA Mini -Storage 

South CH Undeveloped 
West CH CEFCO Truck Stop 
West CH w/ SUP Auto Sales  
East SF-2 Single Family Homes 

 
Land Use Table/Allowable Uses: The requested zoning change would allow for both CH and 
SF-2 uses as identified below: 
 
CH SF-2 
Any uses permitted in the Retail District Single Family detached homes 
Auto and Motorcycle Sales Greenhouse and Garden 
Auto Service/Repair Keeping of dogs, and cats and other normal 

household pets 
Commercial Amusement exclude drag strips 
and motorcycle and go cart racing 

Municipally owned facilities and uses (no 
open storage or repair) 

Community or Exposition Center  Telephone Exchange 
Hotel or Motel Sewage Treatment Plant or Pump Station 
Hospital or Nursing Home Utilities 
Multi-Family  Accessory Structures and Accessory 

Dwelling Units as permitted in Section 36 
Municipal Owned Structures  
Off-Road Vehicle Sales, Service and Repair  
Restaurant with drive in service  
Truck Stop/Parking  

 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 3 of 3   
 

Area & Setback Requirements:  
 
 CH SF-2 
Minimum Lot area 7,200 7,500 
Lot width 60’ 60’ 
Lot Depth 120’ 100’ 
Minimum Front Yard Setback 60’ 25’ 
Minimum Side Yard Setback 20’ 6’/15’ from Street Right of 

Way 
Minimum Rear Yard Setback 20’ 20’ 
Maximum Lot Coverage 50% 45% 

 
The lot sizes in this neighborhood are approximately 7,500 sq. ft. and meet the requirements 
for the CH and SF-2 District. The smallest lot size is approximately 61’ wide by 124’ deep or 
7,594 sq. ft. Lots 1-4, Block 1 were reconfigured into three lots instead of the four and measure 
at 82’ wide by 124’ deep or 10,168 sq. ft. New residential construction projects will be required 
to meet the SF-2 zoning standards with the approval of this zoning change.  
 
 Future Land Use Map  
 
The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) identifies this area as projected for a Mixed-Use Center with 
uses including a regional shopping destination, potential regional mall site, multi-family, and 
other dense residential uses on perimeter, along with entertainment and lifestyle features. 
 
Recommendation  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this item at their meeting on June 15, 2021, and 
unanimously recommended approval of the requested a zoning change from Commercial 
Highway to Planned Development - Commercial Highway and Single Family-2.  
 
Attachments 
Property Location Map 
Zoning map 
Aerial photo 
Letters to Cameron Subdivision Property Owners 
Zoning notice to owners/Owner notification list/Map with zoning notice boundary (200’) 
P&Z Minute Excerpt 
Ordinance 



























1 
 

Minutes of the  
Planning and Zoning Commission (P&ZC) 

City of Belton 
333 Water Street 

Tuesday, June 15, 2021
 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met at 5:30 P.M. at the Harris Community Center, 401 North Alexander 
Street. Commission members who were present: Chair Brett Baggerly, Vice Chair Dave Covington, Quinton 
Locklin, David Jarratt, Ty Hendrick and Josh Knowles. The following members were absent: Stephanie O’Banion, 
Luke Potts and Zach Krueger. The following staff members were present: Director of Planning Bob van Til, 
Planner Tina Moore, Building Official Bruce Ebbert, Planning Clerk Laura Livingston and IT Specialist Alex 
Munger.  
 
 
5. Z-21-07     Hold a public hearing and consider a zoning change from Commercial Highway to Planned 

Development-Commercial Highway and Single Family-2 District – to allow for commercial uses and 
single-family homes – for properties located at the northwest corner of South Wall Street and East 
Avenue R described as the Cameron Subdivision, Block 1, Lots 1-8 and Block 2, Lots 1-4. (Audio 6:45) 

 
Staff Planner Ms. Moore presented the staff report (Exhibit B).  
 
Chair Baggerly opened the public hearing. Mary Bales, 108 Savage Avenue, Belton, TX, said she was 
shocked to discover that her home was zoned commercial and that if a natural disaster occurred and her 
home was destroyed, then she would not be able to rebuild.  
 
With no one else requesting to speak, Chair Baggerly closed the public hearing.  
 
Commission Member Mr. Covington made a motion to approve item Z-21-07 as recommended by Staff. 
Commission Member Mr. Hendrick seconded the motion. The motion was approved with 6 ayes, 0 nays. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-13 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON BY 
CHANGING THE DESCRIBED DISTRICT FROM COMMERCIAL HIGHWAY DISTRICT 
TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT – COMMERCIAL HIGHWAY AND SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL–2 DISTRICTS FOR PROPERTIES DESCRIBED AS CAMERON 
SUBDIVISION, BLOCK 1, LOTS 1-8 AND BLOCK 2, LOTS 1-4, WITH DEVELOPMENT 
TO BE REGULATED UNDER TYPE AREA 2 DESIGN STANDARDS. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Belton received a petition from a property owner to change 
the status of a legal non-conforming structure in the Cameron Subdivision; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City expanded the boundary of said petition to include other 

properties in the Cameron subdivision to allow the same opportunities. City Staff met with 
property owners and received supporting feedback to proceed with the petition; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed recommendation recognizes an existing use, and the 

primary objective is to permit both commercial and residential uses and to establish 
development standards for future development; and 

 
 The City of Belton has presented the petition duly to the City Planning & Zoning 

Commission and filed said petition with the City Clerk of the City of Belton, and due notice 
of filing of said petition and hearing on said petition has been given as required by the City 
Zoning Ordinance and by law, and a hearing on said petition before the City Planning & 
Zoning Commission of the City of Belton was set for the 15th day of June,  2021, at 5:30 
p.m. for hearing and adoption, said district being described as follows: 

 
Cameron Subdivision, Block 1, Lots 1-8 and Block 2, Lots 1-4. 

(location map attached as Exhibit “A”) 
 
WHEREAS, said application for such amendment was duly recommended by the 

said City Planning & Zoning Commission and the date, time and place of the hearing on 
said application by the City Council of the City of Belton was set for the 22nd day of June 
2021, at 5:30 p.m. at the Harris Community Center and due notice of said hearing was 
given as required by ordinances and by law; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing was held upon the application by the City Council of the City 
of Belton at the time, place and date herein before set forth and no valid objection to said 
amendments was presented. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Belton, 
Texas, that the said district located on a tract of land as more fully and completely 
described above, be and is hereby changed from Commercial Highway to Planned 
Development - Commercial Highway and Single Family-2 District in accordance to Section  
11, Single Family – 2 District,  Section 23, Commercial Highway District, and Section 32,  
Planned Development District of the of the City of Belton Zoning Ordinance, and the Design 



Standards in Ordinance 2014-17, Section 7.1 of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 

This ordinance was presented at the stated meeting of the City Council of the City of Belton 
and upon reading was passed and adopted by the City Council on the 22nd day of June 
2021, by a vote of ______ ayes and ______ nays. 
 

SIGNED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk on this the 
22nd day of June 2021. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Wayne Carpenter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



EXHIBIT "A"



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 1 of 4   
 

Staff Report - City Council Agenda Item            
 
 
       
Agenda Item #9 
 
Receive a report and discuss the 2016 Non-Annexation Development Agreements. 
  
Originating Department 
 
Planning – Bob van Til, AICP, Director of Planning 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of this item is to discuss and receive direction on the pending expiration of the 
Non-Annexation Development Agreements that were approved on November 22, 2016. 
 
Background 
 
Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code governs annexation for cities. In addition, 
Chapter 212 of the Texas Local Government Code, related to municipal regulation of 
subdivisions and property development, governs development agreements (see 212.172, 
Development Agreements). 
 
Non-Annexation Development Agreements may be granted for up to 45 years from the original 
date of approval. 
 
In 2019, the Texas Legislature changed annexation law with passage of HB 347 which took 
effect on May 24, 2021. This amendment shifted much of the authority to annex away from 
municipalities and vested much of the authority with property owners. However, this new law 
did not affect existing Non-Annexation Development Agreements. Existing Non-Annexation 
Development Agreements are ‘grandfathered’ under the rules that were in effect prior to the 
2019 amendments. 
 
On December 13, 2016, the City Council approved ordinances annexing 542.86 acres.  
 
Prior to that time, on November 22, 2016, the City Council approved 50 Non-Annexation 
Development Agreements. Of the 50, 35 expire on November 22, 2021 (5 years), and 15 expire 
on November 22, 2026 (10 years). Please see Exhibit 1. 
 
Infrastructure Investments and Development Activity 
 
Public Improvements: 
 
1. IH 35 has been widened to the south. 

 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 2 of 4   
 

2. The City and the Belton EDC are completing a water line that extends from Groves Road 
to the northwest corner of River Farm on Toll Bridge Road. Please see Exhibit 2. 

3. The City is also in the process of extending a sanitary sewer line from FM436/Loop 121 to 
River Farm and IH 35. Please see Exhibit 2.  

  
Private Development: 
 
The River Farm property, comprised of approximately 481 acres (see the brown colored tract 
on Exhibit 1), is located partly inside and partly outside of the city limits. The northmost 304 
acres, located in Belton’s ETJ, was originally subject to a Non-Annexation Development 
Agreement set to trigger annexation with development, but the City agreed to release the 
Agreement in May of 2021. The 177 acres located inside the City will remain in the City until 
the obligation for Toll Bridge Road is satisfied. The development agreement requires that all 
future River Farm owners waive the right to oppose future annexation by the City when the 
MUD bonds are paid off.  
 
Beyond the River Farm property, staff has spoken to several owners, but no one has submitted 
any development permit applications, yet. Neither has there been any permit activity in the 
Sparta Road area.  
 
The parcel located north of IH-14 is situated along the future alignment of the FM 2271 
extension (Lake-to-Lake Road). There is a need to closely monitor development and plat 
activity in this corridor to ensure the path is not blocked by development. 
 
Property owners maintain their qualification for Non-Annexation Development Agreements only 
if their property is exempt in accordance with State law by being limited in use to Agricultural, 
Timber, or Wildlife Management. In the last five years, one property owner lost their exempt 
status. That tract is indicated in red on the map. 
 
Clearly, the South IH-35 corridor, and other areas previously studied for annexation, remain 
significant for future development review. The Agreements provide an important balance of 
interests between the City and property owners. Properties remain outside the City while no 
development is planned, but if development is contemplated, the City has an opportunity to 
evaluate annexation, given surrounding conditions. 
 
Project Analysis and Discussion 
 
Staff contacted TML and other cities to learn how they managed Non-Annexation Development 
Agreements. Below is a summary of the cities’ responses: 
 
The cities contacted were Temple, Killeen, Harker Heights, Salado, Nolanville, Georgetown, 
Hutto, Round Rock, Pflugerville, Taylor, Kyle, and Buda. 
 
Many of the cities have active Non-Annexation Development Agreements, but their expiration 
dates are not in the near term. However, several of the municipalities have had to manage the 
process. 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 3 of 4   
 

Pflugerville has followed the desires of the property owners. If the owner of a parcel wanted 
to be annexed, they annexed the property. If not, the City did not institute the annexation 
proceedings. 
Temple reported that they recently extended their Non-Annexation Development Agreements 
for ten years. 
Georgetown is preparing to manage the expiration of their Non-Annexation Development 
Agreements. As part of their process, they are prioritizing the subject parcels to see which may 
be highest priority in light of pending infrastructure extensions or other development pressure.  
 
Possible Belton Options: 
 
1. Allow the Agreements to run to the end of their term and exercise the agreed upon language 

to initiate the annexation process. 
2. Allow the Agreements to run to the end of their term and allow properties to revert to the 

City’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), limiting the City to Plat review only. 
3. Extend all the eligible Non-Annexation Development Agreements for another term (i.e., five 

years). 
 
Suggested Belton Process: 
 
We suggest there may be merit to consider Option 3. If chosen, the following process is 
recommended: 
 

• 6-22-2021 – Council workshop and consensus. 
 

• 7-13-2021 – Council adopts a resolution authorizing the City Manager to process 
voluntary annexations after the 10-15-21 deadline or execute Non-Annexation 
Development Agreements for a specified additional period, such as five years.  
 

• 7-14-2021 – Send letters to the landowners. 
 

• 9-20-2021 – Send out new Non-Annexation Development Agreements to landowners 
with a deadline of 10-15-2021 for signatures. 

 
• 10-15-2021 – Deadline to sign the new Non-Annexation Development Agreements. 

 
• 10-18-2021 - Initiate the annexation process for those property owners who do not 

qualify for an extension of the Non-Annexation Development Agreement or those who 
did not sign the new agreement. 

 
• 11-22-2021 – Existing Non-Annexation Development Agreements expire. 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 

City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 4 of 4   
 

Recommendation 
 
Discuss the proposed process and provide direction. 
 
Exhibits 
Map showing location of 2016 Non-Annexation Development Agreements 
Water and Sanitary Sewer Projects along IH-35 south 
List of property owners with Non-Annexation Development Agreements from 2016 
Subchapter C-3, Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code relating to annexation: 
Individual Landowner Petition (Process). 



12
"

18
"

27"

8"

14
"

15"

30"

24"

12"

Lampasas R iver

BELTON ETJ

BELTON ETJ

BELTON ETJ

BELTON ETJ

W 190 HWY

S INTERSTATE 35

LAKE RD

E 6TH AVE

N M
AIN

 ST

S L
OO

P 1
21

N L
OO

P 1
21

FM
 16

70

FM
 22

71
W 2ND AVE

E LOOP 121

W LOOP 121

S M
AIN

 ST

HOLLAND RD

N INTERSTATE 35

E CENTRAL AVEW 190 HWY

S INTERSTATE 35

N INTERSTATE 35

99278

37163

40525

118543

73925

17133 117048

40526

96990

47291

432118

38585

49350

72402

40522

318123

400982

194235

49348

105618

58245
66225

99274

192912

29513

194482

105615

187730187729

38071

460396

135784

39979

114064

47290

418842

99277

418859

418857

420157

66225

420200

26804

75543

420036

168881

117046

432319

66225

194307

420041

47288

432317

196269

233418

432315

167436

0 10.5
Miles

PROP. FORCE MAIN

PROP. GRAVITY MAIN

PROP. WATERLINE

2016 Non-Annexation Development Agreements that expire 11 Nov 2021

River Farms' Non-Annexation Development Agreement was Termininated on 2 Feb 2021

No Longer Have an Agricultural Exemption

2016 Non-Annexation Development Agreement that expire on 11 Nov 2026 µ

2016 Non-Annexation Development Agreements
Belton, TX



T:\City Hall\City Clerk\Agendas\Agendas-2021\06-22-21\Staff Reports\#9 - Non-Annexation Development Agreements (City Clerk)

Non-Annexation Development Agreements - City Clerk

Total 5-year 10-year Property Owners Geographic ID# Property ID# Date Signed by CM Notarized Term Expiration Date

1 1
Old Santa Fe Mill, LC; Noel Thomas Curb, 
President 544760101 26804 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021

1 1
Elizabeth Mae Capps Foster, Virginia Capps 
Cosper 544070200 37163 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021

1 1 Eugene D. Holle, Gloria M. Holle 601360201 38071 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 10 years 11/22/2026
1 1 John P. Fulwiler 601000001 38585 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 10 years 11/22/2026
1 1 R.W. Gerstenberg 553710000 40522 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 10 years 11/22/2026
1 1 Kenneth C. Gerstenberg 553700100 40525 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 10 years 11/22/2026
1 1 Kenneth C. Gerstenberg 553690000 40526 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 10 years 11/22/2026
1 1 Randy Alford, Laura Alford 553520101 47288 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Randy Alford, Laura Alford 554250001 47290 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Randy Alford, Laura Alford 554250101 47291 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Doug Franks, Melisa K. Franks 601100001 49348 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 10 years 11/22/2026
1 1 Vernon Hicks 601360101 49350 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 10 years 11/22/2026
1 1 George Dishon, Stacie Dishon 601000100 58245 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 10 years 11/22/2026
1 1 Ron's One Stop, Inc., David R. Beevers, V.P. 601000200 66225 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 10 years 11/22/2026
1 1 Donald R. Grobowsky 553900000 72402 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Ronald Dean Mikeska, Emily Mikeska 544700101 73925 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Richard W. Dillard, Peggy C. Dillard 544670000 75543 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Mary M. Markham 544740001 96990 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 River Farm Ltd., Robert K. Utley, III 466420000 99274 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 River Farm Ltd., Robert K. Utley, III 553740000 99277 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 River Farm Ltd., Robert K. Utley, III 553740001 99278 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1  Alton L. Sheppard, Elizabeth A. Sheppard 553520102 105615 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Alton L. Sheppard, Elizabeth A. Sheppard 554250102 105616 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Alton L. Sheppard, Elizabeth A. Sheppard 554250202 105618 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 William M. Talley 601840100 114064 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 10 years 11/22/2026
1 1 Ray Lynn Renfro, Betty Renfro 543950200 135784 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Randy Alford, Laura Alford 553520300 167436 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Eugene D. Holle, Gloria M. Holle 488690201 168881 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 10 years 11/22/2026

1 1 Reginald D. Hargrove, Annette Cash Hargrove 433410000 187729 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Helga Venus 433410003 187730 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Gilbert Gerstenberg 553710400 192912 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 10 years 11/22/2026
1 1 George Dishon, Stacie Dishon 601000102 194307 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 10 years 11/22/2026
1 1 Ray Lynn Renfro, Betty Renfro 543950401 194482 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Richard W. Dillard, Peggy C. Dillard 544670400 318123 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Fernando De Leon 601700100 400982 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Ronald Dean Mikeska, Emily Mikeska 544700101 417915 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Virginia Capps Cosper 544070400 418842 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Elizabeth Mae Capps Foster 544070500 418857 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021

1 1
Elizabeth Mae Capps Foster, Virginia Capps 
Cosper 544070600 418859 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021

1 1 James M. Kincaid, Dolores Kincaid 553520400 420157 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Randy Alford, Laura Alford 553520301 420158 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Randy Alford, Laura Alford 553520103 420163 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 James R. Macanliss, Mary M. Markham 544740014 420200 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Audrey Fuller, David Fuller 553710203 432118 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 10 years 11/22/2026
1 1 Virginia Capps Cosper 544081000 432315 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021

1 1
Elizabeth Mae Capps Foster, Virginia Capps 
Cosper 544081200 432317 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021

1 1 Elizabeth Mae Capps Foster 544081400 432319 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021

1 1 Reginald D. Hargrove, Annette Cash Hargrove 433410002 440977 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Bobby Wilson, Patricia Potts Wilson 544911000 460396 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 5 years 11/22/2021
1 1 Cody Sulak, Jacqueline Sulak 601840200 471161 11/22/2016 11/22/2016 10 years 11/22/2026

50 35 15
50

1  of  3



T:\City Hall\City Clerk\Agendas\Agendas-2021\06-22-21\Staff Reports\#9 - Non-Annexation Development Agreements (City Clerk)

Non-Annexation Development Agreements - City Clerk

Total 5-year 10-year Property Owners Geographic ID# Property ID# Date Signed by CM Notarized Term Expiration Date
Vincent Grillo, Nelda Grillo 494830000 94294 10/30/2017 10/30/2017 10 years 10/30/2027
Charles Swindoll 532810000 1622 10/31/2017 10/31/2017 10 years 10/31/2027
Charles Swindoll 532811700 113700 10/31/2017 10/31/2017 10 years 10/31/2027
Charles Swindoll 532810002 113701 10/31/2017 10/31/2017 10 years 10/31/2027
Charles Swindoll 532811903 113702 10/31/2017 10/31/2017 10 years 10/31/2027
Charles Swindoll 595101701 113704 10/31/2017 10/31/2017 10 years 10/31/2027
Gilbert Frank Golden, Patricia L. Golden 494620801 41513 11/6/2017 11/6/2017 10 years 11/6/2027
Jay Lovorn 601410000 66293 11/6/2017 11/6/2017 10 years 11/6/2027
Julius W. Habel, Linda L. Habel 545690701 169250 11/6/2017 11/6/2017 10 years 11/6/2027
Michael A. Anderson, Susan Lynn Elrod 543990002 186773 11/8/2017 11/8/2017 10 years 11/8/2027
Michael A. Anderson, Susan Lynn Elrod 543990400 186681 11/8/2017 11/8/2017 10 years 11/8/2027
Michael A. Anderson, Susan Lynn Elrod 543990301 2826 11/8/2017 11/8/2017 10 years 11/8/2027
Billy J. Long 494680100 65816 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Billy J. Long A494680100 412155 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Brian J. Frosch, Katie E. Frosch 530840000 56787 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Harley B. Hoover 494621000 51676 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Harley B. Hoover 494620000 51675 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Hollis C. Lewis Jr., Elizabeth Trevino Lewis 494690301 64701 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Hollis C. Lewis Jr., Elizabeth Trevino Lewis 494690300 64702 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
James A. Burr Jr., Robie L. Burr 494620403 198363 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
James F. Brooks, Dottie L. Brooks 494620500 22080 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
James F. Brooks, Dottie L. Brooks 494620501 22081 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Jimmy D. Gage 494620901 38800 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Jimmy D. Gage 494620900 38799 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Julian Alvarado, Valerie M. Alvarado 494620302 2249 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Randall D. McKee, Tamara G. McKee 494620300 99803 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Rayford Harmon, Carla Harmon 543990100 101742 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Carwyn Lynn Smith 530810001 24806 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Carwyn Lynn Smith 513710000 24804 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
David Schuman, Alison Schuman 494620303 132158 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Hatem Chouchane 482180001 101311 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
James R. Zuehlke, Theresa Long 494680000 49063 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Cynthia R. Rose (daughter/future owner) (Leon 
E. Rose, deceased) 494680103 101016 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Lore Meier 494620701 170519 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
John Rance Dulaney, Janie Dulaney 545690101 183657 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Sally Verrando 543990001 6761 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Doris E. Graham 545690200 42607 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Harold F. Speights, Carrie S. Speights 545600100 75273 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Jo Ann Sullivan 545690001 149567 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Jacqueline Kay Larson 482110001 15866 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Jimmy Parker, Caroline Parker 545930100 186978 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Jimmy Parker, Caroline Parker 545930102 331149 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Jimmy Parker, Caroline Parker 545930400 333736 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
John Mark Potts, Robin Potts 545680000 129314 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
John Mark Potts, Robin Potts 545680001 424123 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
John Mark Potts, Robin Potts 545680002 424124 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
John Mark Potts, Robin Potts 545680003 424125 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027

Richard D. Savage, Cynthia K. Savage 545680200

103041; 0.468 Acre 
Access Portion of a 
9.669 Acre Tract 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027

Richard D. Savage, Cynthia K. Savage 545680300 123195 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Robert N. Young, Anne Young 545690500 131709 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Robert N. Young, Anne Young 545690600 131711 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Robert N. Young, Anne Young 545690602 467770 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Robert N. Young, Anne Young 545690501 131712 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Sonny Wooley 482170100 130769 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Sonny Wooley 482170101 130770 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Sonny Wooley 532850101 467756 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
Price H. Wharton Jr., Larry L. Wharton Sr., 
Darrell R. Wharton; Wharton Family Trust 546300105 353230 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
William J. Hardin, Blythe J. Hardin 545930000 114709 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027
William J. Hardin, Blythe J. Hardin 532840700 363834 11/15/2017 11/15/2017 10 years 11/15/2027

M. E. Taylor, Betty J. Taylor 532840300

135948; 1.94 Acre 
Portion and 0.221 
Acre Access Portion 
of a 33.706 Acre 
Tract 11/16/2017 11/16/2017 10 years 11/16/2027

M. E. Taylor, Betty J. Taylor 530820001 114707 11/16/2017 11/16/2017 10 years 11/16/2027
M. E. Taylor, Betty J. Taylor 530820000 114706 11/16/2017 11/16/2017 10 years 11/16/2027
Don Michael Miller 482160000 74262 11/16/2017 11/16/2017 10 years 11/16/2027

2  of  3



T:\City Hall\City Clerk\Agendas\Agendas-2021\06-22-21\Staff Reports\#9 - Non-Annexation Development Agreements (City Clerk)

Non-Annexation Development Agreements - City Clerk

Total 5-year 10-year Property Owners Geographic ID# Property ID# Date Signed by CM Notarized Term Expiration Date
Mary Louise Huckabee 545940001 74607 11/16/2017 11/16/2017 10 years 11/16/2027
Robert Shane Ford 530840100 56788 11/22/2017 11/22/2017 10 years 11/22/2027
Robert Shane Ford 530840300 433925 11/22/2017 11/22/2017 10 years 11/22/2027
James J. Allamon 530800100 1756 11/23/2017 11/23/2017 10 years 11/23/2027
James J. Allamon 530800001 1754 11/23/2017 11/23/2017 10 years 11/23/2027
Extraco Banks N.A. Trustee of the Michael W. 
Thompson Retirement Account by Larry Turner, 
Sr. Vice President & Trust Officer 513710100 25708 11/27/2017 11/27/2017 10 years 11/27/2027
Extraco Banks N.A. Trustee of the Michael W. 
Thompson Retirement Account by Larry Turner, 
Sr. Vice President & Trust Officer 530810106 233087 11/27/2017 11/27/2017 10 years 11/27/2027
Extraco Banks N.A. Trustee of the Michael W. 
Thompson Retirement Account by Larry Turner, 
Sr. Vice President & Trust Officer 530810104 167834 11/27/2017 11/27/2017 10 years 11/27/2027
Michael W. Thompson 513710101 232919 11/27/2017 11/27/2017 10 years 11/27/2027
Michael W. Thompson 530810105 232920 11/27/2017 11/27/2017 10 years 11/27/2027
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601371000 29291 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601371001 29292 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601370000 29288 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601360307 29278 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601360309 29283 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601360301 29274 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601360305 29282 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601360306 29276 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601360315 29285 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601360312 10240 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601360391 29286 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601360392 25237 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601370801 123231 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601370900 124431 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 424890600 8672 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601360004 29280 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601360000 29279 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601360201 38071 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 488690201 168881 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601360101 49350 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 602100002 419292 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 602100003 419293 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 602100004 419294 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601030000 587 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 488680000 107623 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601840200 471161 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601840300 477158 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 397030000 107618 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601360302 29275 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028
Chester E. Dickson, Linda Diane Dickson 601360310 419252 11/13/2018 11/13/2018 11/22/2028

Expires in 2021

3  of  3





City Council Agenda Item 
June 22, 2021 

Page 1 of 1   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #10 
     
Conduct a work session on FY2022 budget considerations including, but not limited to, the 
following funds: 
 

A. Water and Sewer Fund 
B. Drainage Fund 
C. Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone (TIRZ) Fund 
D. Belton Economic Development Corporation (BEDC) Fund 

  
Originating Department 
 
Finance Department – Mike Rodgers, Director of Finance  
 
Summary Information 
 
As work continues on the FY 2022 proposed annual budget, Staff will present the revenues 
and expenditures anticipated for several funds. We look forward to Council input on these 
components. The FY 2022 proposed annual budget must be filed at least thirty days prior to 
adoption. The date for adoption is currently scheduled for September 14, 2021. 
 
As in prior years, Staff will upload budget detail documents to the “Budget Info” folder on 
DropBox for Council review if desired.  
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
None 
 
Recommendation 
 
Receive presentation 
 
Attachments 
Presentation 



Presented by:
Michael Rodgers, CPA

Director of Finance

FY22 Budget Workshop
June 22, 2021



2

Funds To Be Discussed

• Water and Sewer Fund
• Drainage Fund
• TIRZ
• BEDC



3

Water and Sewer Fund
Year-End Forecast for FY21

FY21 FY21
Amended Year-End
Budget Estimate

Revenue 9,003,733$   9,914,379$   
Expenditures (8,989,710)    (9,262,450)    
Incr/(Decr) to Reserve 14,023$        651,929$      


Sheet1

						FY21				FY21

						Amended				Year-End

						Budget				Estimate

		Revenue				$   9,003,733				$   9,914,379

		Expenditures				(8,989,710)				(9,262,450)

		Incr/(Decr) to Reserve				$   14,023				$   651,929







4

Forecast for FY21

• Water and sewer revenue surplus is the 
result of greater than anticipated 
consumption compared to a COVID-
influenced conservative budget

• Expenditures exceed budget due to 
BCWCID debt payments and carry-over 
(FY20) purchase orders for capital projects



5

Water and Sewer Fund
FY22 Statement of Fund Balance

 Projected Unrestricted Balance, Sept 30, 2021 7,345,991$   

Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:
FY22 Revenue 10,460,630   
FY22 Expenses (10,604,060)  

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance (143,430)       

Projected Restricted Balance, Sept 30, 2022 7,202,561$   


Sheet1

		Projected Unrestricted Balance, Sept 30, 2021						$   7,345,991

				Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:

						FY22 Revenue		10,460,630

						FY22 Expenses		(10,604,060)

				Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance				(143,430)

		Projected Restricted Balance, Sept 30, 2022						$   7,202,561

										5







Status of 
Water and Sewer Fund Reserves

6

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

Unrestricted Reserve Balance Minimum Reserve Requirement



7

Budget to Budget Comparison
Revenue by Category 

Water and Sewer Fund
Revenue Category

FY21
Budget

FY21
Estimate

FY22
Budget

Increase /
(Decrease)

Water Revenue $ 5,068,687  $ 5,675,646 $ 6,014,130 $    945,443

Sewer Revenue 3,319,370 3,612,873 3,829,650 510,280

Fees and Other Revenue 482,998 522,280 489,690 6,692

Miscellaneous 132,678 103,580 127,160 (5,518)

Total Revenue $ 9,003,733 $ 9,914,379 $10,460,630 $ 1,456,897

Revenue increases by $546,251 (5.5%) over FY21 estimate



8

FY22 Water and Sewer Revenue

• Water and sewer revenue increases 6% with 
growth in customer count and consumption

• No rate increases are planned for FY22
• Fees and miscellaneous revenues remain 

relatively flat 



9

FY22 Water and Sewer Fund 
Revenue

Water revenue $ 6,014,130
Sewer revenue 3,829,650
Fees and other 489,690
Miscellaneous 127,160
Total                      $10,460,630

Water, 57%

Sewer, 37%

Water Sewer Fees & other Miscellaneous



10

Utility Rates

• Rates from the 2014 study were implemented
• No rate changes are proposed for FY22
• Rate study will be done next year to explore 

different rate models

Approved Water Rates
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Minimum Bill $15.00 $15.50 $16.00 $16.50 $17.00 $17.00 $17.00
Per 1,000 Gallons $3.49 $3.49 $3.70 $3.70 $3.70 $3.70 $3.70

Approved Wastewater Rates
2015 2106 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Minimum Bill $12.00 $12.50 $13.00 $13.50 $14.00 $14.00 $14.00
Per 1,000 Gallons $4.00 $4.50 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00 $5.00



TML Survey of
Water and Sewer Charges*

$49.07

$53.60

$54.15

$57.10

$62.33

$94.68

$0.00 $10.00 $20.00 $30.00 $40.00 $50.00 $60.00 $70.00 $80.00 $90.00 $100.00

Killeen

Temple

Harker Heights

Belton

Cedar Park

Leander

11
*Amount charged by each city for residential consumption of 5,000 gallons



Water and Sewer Fund
Revenue from FY15 to FY22

FY Water Sewer Other

2015 $3,780,854 $2,100,850 $   413,554

2016 $4,030,216 $2,468,700 $   420,284

2017 $4,557,170 $2,827,928 $   567,997

2018 $4,907,703 $3,087,121 $   697,601

2019 $4,725,361 $3,155,709 $   750,217

2020 $5,244,147 $3,289,304 $   558,943

2021Projected $5,675,646 $3,612,873 $   625,860

2022Budget $6,014,130 $3,829,650 $   616,850

12

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

Water Sewer Other



13

Budget to Budget Comparison
Expenses by Division

Water and Sewer Fund
Division

FY21
Amended

Budget

FY21
Estimate

FY22
Budget

Increase / 
(Decrease)

Utility Administration $       813,340 $     802,001 $    1,699,900 $       886,560   

Utility Finance 558,008 587,628 2,184,010 1,626,002

Water 3,450,235 3,825,324 3,628,300 178,065

Sewer Collection 883,727 882,288 1,697,450 813,723

Sewer Lift Stations 981,852 1,123,251 1,394,400 412,548

Other Costs 2,302,548 2,041,958 0 (2,302,548)

Total Expenses $    8,989,710 $   9,262,450 $  10,604,060 $    1,614,350



14

FY22 Water and Sewer Fund
Expenses by Category

Personnel            $ 2,120,690
Supplies                     123,070
Maintenance              182,350
Services         1,017,220
Debt 1,536,880
Water Purchases             1,500,700
Sewage Treatment 829,340
Other Expenses 50,000
Capital Outlay 404,000
Transfers 2,839,810
Total                           $10,604,060

Personnel, 20%

Debt, 14%
Water Purchases, 14%

Transfers, 27%

Personnel Supplies

Maintenance Services

Debt Water Purchases

Sewage Treatment Other Expenses

Capital Outlay Transfers



15

Budget to Budget Comparison
Expenses by Category

Water/Sewer Fund
Expense Category

FY21
Amended

Budget

FY21
Estimate

FY22
Budget

Increase /
(Decrease)

Personnel $ 1,882,602 $ 1,869,527 $ 2,120,690 $   238,088
Supplies 120,912 125,640 123,070 2,158
Maintenance 224,930 173,600 182,350 (42,580)
Services 473,514 510,481 1,017,220 543,706
Debt 1,802,548 1,541,958 1,536,880 (265,668)
Water Purchases 1,191,543 1,446,688 1,500,700 309,157
Sewage Treatment 831,516 898,707 829,340 (2,176)
Other Expenses 0 0 50,000 50,000
Capital Outlay 292,410 526,114 404,000 111,590
Transfers 2,169,735 2,169,735 2,839,810 670,075
Totals $  8,989,710 $ 9,262,450 $10,604,060 $ 1,614,350



16

Significant Changes

• Personnel costs increase due to position 
reclassifications, salary allocations, and 
performance-based merit adjustments

• Consulting expenses include $400,000 to update 
the utility master plan and $30,000 to perform a 
rate study

• The appropriation for anticipated debt service has 
been removed

• The cost of water rises by $257,000 to reflect an 
entire year of payments on BCWCID-issued debt



17

Significant Changes

• Capital outlay includes $159,000 for weather 
protection on buildings and $75,000 for a new 
work order system

• Transfers for capital projects total $1,900,000 in 
FY22 to cash fund several projects, including
– E 20 ½ Avenue water line replacement
– Loop 121 pump station pump and motor 
– Loop 121 pump station generator
– Lift station generators
– McFarland Estates water/sewer improvements



18

Outstanding Debt
as of October 1, 2021

Bond Issuance Description
Outstanding

Amount
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2002 $       355,000
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2008 $         79,200
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2015 $    6,420,000
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2016 $    8,955,000
G.O. Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 $       695,000
Revenue-Supported Debt Outstanding $  16,504,200



Annual Debt Service Payments 
on Revenue-Supported Debt

19

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

$1,600,000

$1,800,000

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036

Interest Principal



Drainage Fund

20



21

Drainage Fund
Year-End Forecast for FY21

FY21 Year-End
Budget Estimate

Revenue 548,061$      547,408$      
Expenditures (531,260)       (476,935)       
Incr/(Decr) to Reserve 16,801$        70,473$        


Sheet1

						FY21				Year-End

						Budget				Estimate

		Revenue				$   548,061				$   547,408

		Expenditures				(531,260)				(476,935)

		Incr/(Decr) to Reserve				$   16,801				$   70,473







22

Forecast for FY21

• Revenue is in line with budget

• Expenses are under budget due to savings in 
salaries, employee insurance, and 
engineering



23

Drainage Fund
FY22 Statement of Fund Balance

 Projected Spendable Balance, Sept 30, 2021 304,929$      

Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:
FY22 Revenue 580,400        
FY22 Expenditures (558,180)      

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance 22,220          

Spendable Fund Balance, Sept 30, 2022 327,149$      


Sheet1

		Projected Spendable Balance, Sept 30, 2021						$   304,929

				Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:

						FY22 Revenue		580,400

						FY22 Expenditures		(558,180)

				Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance				22,220

		Spendable Fund Balance, Sept 30, 2022						$   327,149

										5







24

Budget to Budget Comparison
Revenue by Category 

Drainage Fund
Revenue Category

FY21
Budget

FY21
Estimate

FY22
Budget

Increase /
(Decrease)

Storm Drainage Fees $546,121 $547,008 $580,000 $33,879

Interest Income 1,940 400 400 (1,540)

Total Revenue $548,061 $547,408 $580,400 $32,339



25

FY21 Drainage Fund Revenue

• No change to the City’s drainage fee is 
proposed for FY22

• Storm drainage fee revenue increases by six 
percent over the year-end estimate for FY21 
as the customer count continues to grow

• Interest income falls due to lower yields on 
investments



Drainage Fee Comparison

26

 $-  $1.00  $2.00  $3.00  $4.00  $5.00  $6.00  $7.00  $8.00

Belton

Cove

Georgetown

Harker Heights

Killeen

Temple

Residential Rate

 $-  $50.00  $100.00  $150.00  $200.00  $250.00

Belton

Cove

Georgetown

Harker Heights

Killeen

Temple

Non-residential rate for 100,000 SF



Drainage Fund
Revenue from FY15 to FY22
FY Drainage Fees

2015 $360,021

2016 $377,990

2017 $389,230

2018 $452,742

2019 $492,639

2020 $517,462

2021Projected $547,008

2022Budget $580,400

27

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

Drainage Fees



28

Budget to Budget Comparison
Expenses by Category

Drainage Fund 
Expense 
Category

FY21
Budget

FY21
Estimate

FY22
Budget

Increase /
(Decrease)

Personnel $  261,427 $225,308 $  268,990 $      7,563 
Supplies 16,280 14,797 15,630 (650)
Maintenance 19,160 14,632 31,260 12,100
Services 30,243 18,130 30,090 (153)
Debt 25,790 25,708 25,030 (760)
Capital Outlay 0 0 8,000 8,000
Transfers 178,360 178,360 179,180 820
Totals $  531,260 $476,935 $  558,180 $    26,920



29

Significant Changes

• Flood warning expenses increase by $10,400 to 
replace the first of three sensors at Paddy 
Hamilton

• Capital outlay includes the purchase of a zero-turn 
mower for $8,000



Annual Debt Service Payments 
on Revenue-Supported Debt

30

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

Interest Principal



Tax Increment
Reinvestment Zone #1

31



32

TIRZ Operating Fund
FY22 Statement of Fund Balance

 Projected Spendable Balance, Sept 30, 2021 653,202$      

Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:
FY22 Revenue 2,867,950     
FY22 Expenditures (2,210,240)   

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance 657,710        

Spendable Fund Balance, Sept 30, 2022 1,310,912$   


Sheet1

		Projected Spendable Balance, Sept 30, 2021						$   653,202

				Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:

						FY22 Revenue		2,867,950

						FY22 Expenditures		(2,210,240)

				Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance				657,710

		Spendable Fund Balance, Sept 30, 2022						$   1,310,912

										5







33

Budget to Budget Comparison
TIRZ Operating Fund Revenue 

TIRZ Fund
Revenue

FY21
Budget

FY21
Estimate

FY22
Budget

Increase /
(Decrease)

City $1,630,640 $1,421,889 $1,757,200 $ 126,560

County 1,054,435 893,761 1,106,750 52,315

Interest 4,700 4,000 4,000 (700)

Total $2,689,775 $2,319,650 $2,867,950 $ 178,175   

FY22 revenue assumes a 15% increase in TIRZ property value to $278 million, along with a City 
tax rate of $0.63/$100 of taxable value.



34

Revenue Compared to Study

 $50,000
 $250,000
 $450,000
 $650,000
 $850,000

 $1,050,000
 $1,250,000
 $1,450,000
 $1,650,000
 $1,850,000
 $2,050,000
 $2,250,000
 $2,450,000
 $2,650,000
 $2,850,000
 $3,050,000

TIRZ Study Actual Taxes



35

Budget to Budget Comparison
TIRZ Operating Fund Expenditures 

TIRZ Fund
Expenditures

FY21
Budget

FY21
Estimate

FY22
Budget

Increase /
(Decrease)

Services $                0 $       36,200 $       35,000 $     35,000

Debt Service 413,685  414,055 402,710 (10,975)   

Grants 50,000 30,000 90,000 40,000

Transfers 1,480,206 1,480,206 1,682,530 202,324

Total $  1,943,891 $  1,960,461 $  2,210,240 $   266,349   



Façade Grants

• FY 2021 grants awarded
– Arusha Coffee Shop $20,000
– The Spa at Greenbriar $10,000

• FY 2022 approved/pending projects
– Jo Mapel, 108 N Central Ave $20,000
– Woodhouse Day Spa, 110 N Main St $20,000

• Potential projects
– Dusty Miller, 222 W Central Ave $20,000
– Bobby Spradley, 204 N East St $20,000
– Main Street Bridal, 100 N Main St $10,000

36



Outstanding Debt
as of October 1, 2021

37

Bond Issuance Description
Outstanding

Amount
G.O. Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 $       140,000
G.O. Refunding Bonds, Series 2019 $       495,000
Revenue-Supported Debt Outstanding $       635,000



TIRZ Capital Projects Fund

• The Capital Projects Fund provides funding 
for multi-year capital projects within the 
Zone that are approved by the Board and 
City Council

• On October 1, 2021, the cash balance is 
expected to be approximately $2,000,000

38



39

TIRZ Capital Projects Fund
Project Allocations

Project

Funding
Provided 
through
FY 2021

Funding 
Remaining

through
FY 2021

FY 2022
Allocation

FY 2023
Allocation

FY 2024
Allocation

Total
Funding

Heritage Park $3,550,000 $2,447,479 $1,450,000 - - $5,000,000

Southwest Parkway 450,000 280,855 200,000 750,000 - 1,400,000

South Belton SUP 432,114 - - - - 432,114

Standpipe Park 120,000 120,000 - - - 120,000

Library 125,000 12,686 - 250,000 - 375,000

Connell Street - - - 1,200,000 2,436,000 3,636,000

6th Ave 
Beautification

100,000 14,740 - - - 100,000

Total $4,777,114 $2,875,760 $1,650,000 $2,200,000 $2,436,000 $11,063,114



40

TIRZ Fund
Long-Term Forecast

FY 2020
Actual

FY 2021
Estimated

FY 2022
Budgeted

FY 2023
Forecasted

FY 2024
Forecasted

Beginning Fund Balance $            304,842 $            294,013 $            653,202 $         1,310,912 $         2,059,424 

Ad Valorem Taxes - City $         1,155,204 $         1,421,889 $         1,757,200 $         2,020,780 $         2,323,897 
Ad Valorem Taxes - County $            735,127 $            893,761 $         1,106,750 $         1,272,763 $         1,463,677 
Bond Proceeds $         1,060,751 $                       - $                       - $                       - $                       -
Other Misc. Income $                5,324 $                4,000 $                4,000 $                4,000 $                4,000 
Total Revenue $         2,956,406 $         2,319,650 $         2,867,950 $         3,297,543 $         3,791,574 

Grants $              60,000 $              30,000 $              90,000 $              50,000 $              50,000 
Debt Service $         1,456,382 $            414,055 $            402,710 $            265,200 $                       -
Administrative Costs $              26,174 $              36,200 $              35,000 $                       - $                       -
Transfer To General Fund $              30,679 $              30,206 $              32,530 $              33,831 $              35,184 
Transfer To Capital Projects $         1,394,000 $         1,450,000 $         1,650,000 $         2,200,000 $         2,436,000 
Total Expenditures $         2,967,235 $         1,960,461 $         2,210,240 $         2,549,031 $         2,521,184 

Fund Balance Impact $           (10,829) $            359,189 $            657,710 $            748,512 $         1,270,389 

Ending Fund Balance $            294,013 $            653,202 $         1,310,912 $         2,059,424 $         3,329,814 



Belton Economic
Development Corporation

41



42

BEDC Operating Fund
Year-End Forecast for FY21

FY21 Year-End
Budget Estimate

Revenue 1,702,199$   2,320,110$   
Expenditures (546,643)       (452,311)       
Incr/(Decr) to Reserve 1,155,556$   1,867,799$   


Sheet1

						FY21				Year-End

						Budget				Estimate

		Revenue				$   1,702,199				$   2,320,110

		Expenditures				(546,643)				(452,311)

		Incr/(Decr) to Reserve				$   1,155,556				$   1,867,799







43

Forecast for FY21

• Sales tax revenue of $2,281,600 surpasses 
the unamended budget of $1,659,081

• Expenditures are under budget due to 
savings in business park maintenance, 
marketing, training, special services, and 
capital outlay



44

BEDC Operating Fund
FY22 Statement of Fund Balance

 Projected Spendable Balance, Sept 30, 2021 4,548,021$   

Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:
FY22 Revenue 2,455,330     
FY22 Expenditures (685,260)      

Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance 1,770,070     

Spendable Fund Balance, Sept 30, 2022 6,318,091$   


Sheet1

		Projected Spendable Balance, Sept 30, 2021						$   4,548,021

				Increases/(Decreases) to Fund Balance:

						FY22 Revenue		2,455,330

						FY22 Expenditures		(685,260)

				Net Increase/(Decrease) to Fund Balance				1,770,070

		Spendable Fund Balance, Sept 30, 2022						$   6,318,091

										5







45

Budget to Budget Comparison
BEDC Operating Fund Revenue 

BEDC Fund
Revenue

FY21
Budget

FY21
Estimate

FY22
Budget

Increase /
(Decrease)

Sales Tax $1,659,081 $2,281,600 $2,418,500 $759,419

Rental Income 27,600 27,600 27,600 0

Miscellaneous 15,518 10,910 9,230 (6,288)

Total $1,702,199 $2,320,110 $2,455,330 $753,131   



46

Budget to Budget Comparison
BEDC Operating Fund Expenditures 
BEDC Fund
Expenditures

FY21
Budget

FY21
Estimate

FY22
Budget

Increase /
(Decrease)

Personnel $  200,468               $  211,200 $  218,600 $     18,132

Supplies 7,200  4,921 5,080 (2,120)   

Maintenance 71,785 48,970 76,190 4,405

Services 217,190 150,083 185,390 (31,800)

Capital Outlay 50,000 37,137 50,000 0

Transfers 0 0 150,000 150,000

Total $  546,643 $  452,311 $  685,260 $   138,617   



BEDC Capital Project Fund

Project

Current  
Project
Budget

Spent/
Encumbered

To Date

Remaining 
Project 
Budget

Avenue D Extension $    2,070,000 $      310,000 $   1,760,000

Rockwool Site Enhancements 80,000 0 80,000

IH-35 Water Line 1,897,674 1,099,065 798,609

IH-14 Water Line 500,000 81,530 418,470

IH-14 Sewer Line 1,330,585 230,585 1,100,000

Capitol Way Extension 150,000 0 150,000

Total $    6,028,259 $   1,721,180 $   4,307,079

47



BEDC Incentives Fund

48

• The cash balance in the BEDC Incentives 
Fund is just over $1,875,000

• This money is available to pay incentives 
that have been offered by BEDC, including 
CGI and Belltec



49

In Summary
• Water/Sewer Fund and Drainage Fund revenue 

continues to grow as more customers utilize City 
services

• No rate increases are planned for water, sewer or 
drainage

• Both utility funds will set aside significant funding 
for future capital projects

• The TIRZ and BEDC have been great partners for 
completing capital projects



Upcoming Budget Calendar

Meeting Date Budget Item to be Presented
July 13 -Discuss the 2022-2026 Capital Improvements Program

July 27
-Present the FY22 Proposed Annual Budget to City Council
-Call date for public hearing on the proposed budget
-Presentation of fee schedule changes

August 10
-Propose a property tax rate
-Call date for public hearing on the property tax rate
-Present the Strategic Plan

September 7
(Special)

-Hold public hearings on budget and property tax rate
-Receive public input on the Strategic Plan
-Adopt fee schedule

September 14 -Adopt Strategic Plan, FY22 Annual Budget, and tax rate

50



Questions/Comments?

51


	Agenda - 062221
	City Manager's Memo
	#3 - Minutes - 060821
	#4 - Staff Report - DCIP Grant
	#4 - Attachments
	#5 - Staff Report - RAISE Grant
	#5 - Attachments
	#6 - Staff Report - CO #1 Street Overlay Project
	#6 - Attachments
	#7 - Staff Report - Zoning Change Guess Dulany Subdivision
	#7 - Attachments
	#8 - Staff Report - Zoning Change Cameron Subdivision
	#8 - Attachments
	#9 - Staff Report - Non Annexation Development Agreements
	#9 - Attachments
	#10 - Staff Report - FY2022 Budget
	#10 - Attachments



